IN SILICO DESIGN OF CHIMERIC PEPTIDES FOR INFECTION-RESISTANT IMPLANT COATINGS

A Thesis Submitted to the Graduate School of İzmir Institute of Technology in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of

MASTER OF SCIENCE

in Biotechnology

by İlker KAN

June 2023 İZMİR We approve the thesis of **İlker KAN**

Examining Committee Members:

Assist. Prof. Deniz Tanıl YÜCESOY Department of Bioengineering, Izmir Institute of Technology

Assist. Prof. Arzu UYAR Department of Bioengineering, Izmir Institute of Technology

Prof. Dr. Tijen PAMİR Faculty of Dentistry, Department of Clinical Sciences, Ege University

19 June 2023

Assist. Prof. Deniz Tanıl YÜCESOY Supervisor, Department of Bioengineering Izmir Institute of Technology

Prof. Dr. Engin ÖZÇİVİCİ Co-Supervisor, Department of

Bioengineering Izmir Institute of Technology

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Ali Oğuz BÜYÜKKİLECİ Head of the Department of Biotechnology **Prof. Dr. Mehtap EANES** Dean of the Graduate School

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

First, I would like to express my thanks to my supervisor Dr. Deniz Tanıl Yücesoy for supporting, guiding, and encouraging me during my MSc. thesis.

I'm grateful to my co-advisor Assoc. Prof. Engin Özçivici for his support.

I would like to thank BAP (2021IYTE-1-0114 and 2022IYTE-2-0050) for their financial support during my master's studies. I would like to thank Abdi İbrahim Foundation for financial support during my research.

I would like to express my thankfulness to Dr. Arzu Uyar for sharing her knowledge and experience during my research.

I would like to thank all Yucesoy Lab members for their support. I would like thank to Alp Deniz Öğüt for his support on coding for data analysis. I thank my colleague Gizem Çulha for her motivation and endless support from the beginning.

I express my gratitude to my family Şeyda Kan, Tufan Kan, and Yasemin Kan for always trusting and supporting me throughout my life. Finally, I would like to thank Cemre Öksüz for her patience, support, and love throughout this time.

ABSTRACT

IN SILICO DESIGN OF CHIMERIC PEPTIDES FOR INFECTION-RESISTANT IMPLANT COATINGS

Tooth loss has been a widespread dental problem affecting patients of various ages. Replacement of lost teeth with implants is a common practice for managing tooth loss due to their mechanical properties and natural-looking aesthetics. One of the persistent problems associated with dental implants is the risk of infection (periimplantitis) which can occur when bacteria colonize the implant surface leading to inflammation and tissue damage with an eventual implant failure. Infection-resistant antimicrobial coatings have been one of the promising solutions to combat implant infections. The purpose of this study was to design functional chimeric peptides using antimicrobial peptides and hydroxyapatite binding peptides in order to provide an antimicrobial effect to hydroxyapatite-coated titanium dental implants. For this purpose, since titanium implants coated with hydroxyapatite show long-term biocompatibility, chimeric peptides that can provide antimicrobial resistance have been designed by considering antimicrobial peptides in addition to these coatings. Computational analysis, solubility analysis, secondary structure analysis, and conformational change analysis were performed to examine the ability of these formed chimeric peptides to retain their antimicrobial properties. Promising candidates obtained from secondary structure analysis and solubility analysis were examined to preserve their structure and stability by performing conformational change analysis, and the most suitable candidates were decided. Although the results give candidates computationally according to the analysis, these candidates should be confirmed experimentally. When the results from the computational analysis are validated by the experimental analysis, it will set the standard for antimicrobial chimeric peptide design.

ÖZET

ENFEKSİYONA DİRENÇLİ İMPLANT KAPLAMALARI İÇİN IN SILICO KİMERİK PEPTİT TASARIMI

Dis kaybı, çeşitli yaşlardaki hastaları etkileyen yaygın bir problem olmuştur. Kaybedilen dişlerin implantlarla değiştirilmesi, mekanik özellikleri ve doğal görünümlü estetikleri nedeniyle diş kayıplarını telafi etmek için yaygın bir uygulamadır. Dental implantlarla ilişkili kalıcı sorunlardan biri, bakterilerin implant yüzeyini kolonize ederek enflamasyona, doku hasarına ve nihai bir implant başarısızlığına yol açtığındaki ortaya çıkabilen enfeksiyon (peri-implantitis) riskidir. Enfeksiyona dirençli antimikrobiyal kaplamalar, implant enfeksiyonlarıyla mücadelede umut verici çözümlerden biri olmuştur. Bu çalışmanın amacı, hidroksiapatit kaplı titanyum dental implantlara antimikrobiyal etki sağlamak için antimikrobiyal peptidler ve hidroksiapatit bağlayıcı peptid kullanarak fonksiyonel kimerik peptidler tasarlamaktır. Bu amaç ile, hidroksiapatit ile kaplanmış Titanyum implantlar uzun vadeli biyouyumluluk gösterdiği için bu kaplamalara ek olarak antimikrobiyal peptitler ele alınarak antimikrobiyal direnç sağlayabilecek kimerik peptitler dizayn edilmiştir. Oluşturulmuş bu kimerik peptitlerin antimikrobiyal özelliklerini koruyabildiklerini incelemek için hesaplamalı olarak ikincil yapı analizi, çözünürlük analizi ve konformasyonel değişim analizi yapılmıştır. İkincil yapı analizi ve çözünürlük analizinden elde edilen umut vadeden adayların konformasyonel değişim analizi yapılarak yapısını ve stabilitesini korumaları incelenmiş olup en uygun adaylara karar verilmiştir. Sonuçlar, yapılan analizlere göre hesaplamalı olarak adayları veriyor olsa da bu adaylar deneysel olarak konfirme edilmelidir. Hesaplamalı analiz ile elde edilecek sonuçlar deneysel analiz ile valide edildiğinde antimikrobiyal kimerik peptit dizaynı için bir standart oluşturmuş olacaktır.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF FIGURES	viii
LIST OF TABLES	ix
ABBREVIATIONS	X
CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION	1
1.1. Tooth Loss and Replacement Therapies	1
1.2. Implant Materials	2
1.2.1. Titanium and Titanium Alloys	3
1.2.2. Zirconium and Zirconium Alloys	5
1.3. Dental Implant Failure	7
1.3.1. Osseointegration	8
1.3.1.1 Prerequisites for Osseointegration	9
1.3.2. Implant Infection	11
1.4. Prevention Strategies for Implant Infection	13
1.4.1. Antibiotic Treatment	14
1.4.2. Antimicrobial Agents	16
1.4.3. Nonfouling Surfaces	17
1.4.4. Antimicrobial Peptides	18
1.5. Immobilization Approaches to Implant Surfaces	21
1.5.1. Physical Immobilization Approach	22
1.5.2. Chemical Immobilization Approach	24
1.5.3. Genetically Engineered Peptides for Inorganics	25

2.1. Aim of Thesis
2.2. Peptide Selection and Chimerization
2.3. Secondary Structure Prediction of Peptides
2.4. Solubility Prediction of Peptides
2.5. Molecular Dynamic Simulation of Peptides
CHAPTER 3. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION
3.1. Peptide Selection and Chimerization
3.2. Secondary Structure Prediction
3.3. Solubility Prediction
3.4. Conformational Analysis of Designed Peptides
CHAPTER 4. CONCLUSION
DEEEDENICES
NEFENEINCES

LIST OF FIGURES

<u>Figures</u> <u>Page</u>
Figure 1. General Implant Materials used in Dental Implantology
Figure 2. Current Approaches for Developing Infection Resistant Implants
Figure 3. Mechanism of Action of Antimicrobial Peptides
Figure 4. Peptide Immobilization Approaches for Implant Surfaces
Figure 5. Combinatorial Design of Chimeric Constructs
Figure 6. 3-Step Approach to Analyze Designed Chimeric Peptides
Figure 7. An Example for Chimeric Peptide Creation
Figure 8. CamSol Intrinsic Concept and CamSol Structurally Corrected Concept 33
Figure 9. An Example for Waterbox with a Peptide
Figure 10. Investigation of whether the structural change is preserved in the chimeric
structure by comparing the antimicrobial parts of chimeric peptides with the
models in which the peptide is alone
Figure 11. Investigation of whether the structural change is preserved in the chimeric
structure by comparing the hydroxyapatite binding parts of chimeric peptides
with the models in which the peptide is alone
Figure 12. Determination of Solubility Limit and Range for Chimeric Peptides
Figure 13. Solubility analysis of Chimeric AMP1 Peptides
Figure 14. Solubility analysis of Chimeric AMP9 Peptides
Figure 15. Solubility analysis of Chimeric AMP11 Peptides
Figure 16. AMP1 Molecular Dynamics Simulation at 35ns to Identify Reference Models
for AMP1 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis46
Figure 17. AMP1 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis with Reference Models 47
Figure 18. AMP9 Molecular Dynamics Simulation at 35ns to Identify Reference
Models for AMP9 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis
Figure 19. AMP9 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis with Reference Models 49
Figure 20. AMP11 Molecular Dynamics Simulation at 35ns to Identify Reference
Models for AMP11 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis59
Figure 21. AMP11 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis with Reference Models 51

LIST OF TABLES

Table	<u>Page</u>
Table 1. Advantages of Titanium and Titanium Alloy Dental Implants	4
Table 2. Disadvantages of Titanium and Titanium Alloy Dental Implants	5
Table 3. List of Antimicrobial Peptides Effective to Cariogenic Bacteria	36

ABBREVIATIONS

TiO2	Titanium Dioxide	
PPI	Proton Pump Inhibitor	
PRP	Platelet Rich Plasma	
ADSCs	Adipose-derived Stem Cells	
PEG	Poly Ethylene Glycol	
AMPs	Antimicrobial Peptides	
СМС	Critical Micelle Concentration	
GEPI	Genetically Engineered Peptides for Inorganics	
SAMs	Self-assembled Monolayers	
MIC	Minimum Inhibitory Concentration	
SOPMA	Self-optimized Prediction Method	
SSCP	Secondary Structural Content Prediction	
SLB	Support Lipid Bilayer	
MD	Molecular Dynamics	

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

1.1. Tooth Loss and Replacement Therapies

Tooth loss has been a significant problem in the past and the present (Saintrain and de Souza 2012). There are numerous causes of tooth loss, including profound dental decay, periodontal disease, vertical fractures, and traumas (Rousseau et al. 2014; Thakur, Guleria, and Bansal 2016; Amadori et al. 2017; Michaud et al. 2017). All of these causes appear to be related to dietary behaviors, addictions, diseases, and accidents, among others (Brunner, Krastl, and Filippi 2009; Braly and Maxwell 1981; Mestaghanmi et al. 2018; Muhammad Ashraf Nazir n.d.). If tooth loss occurs due to these causes, numerous replacement therapies are available, including bridges, prostheses, and dental implants (Höland et al. 2009; Campbell et al. 2017; Guillaume 2016).

These replacement therapies come with some shortcomings such as surgery requirement, risk of failure, high risk of breakage, long time to heal, increased risk of gum disease, and requirement sound dental tissue (Ibbetson, Hemmings, and Harris 2017; Choi et al. n.d.; Gargallo-Albiol et al. 2019; Oh, Shiau, and Reynolds 2020; Naik 2009; Sculean, Gruber, and Bosshardt 2014). Due to food residues and inadequate replacement, bridge applications have increased the risk of periodontal disease (Vargas et al. 2015). Ingestion of dental prostheses may also result in Crohn's disease (Clemente et al. 2009). As with bridge applications, food residues pose hazards for dentures. Also, dentures are frangible due to excessive mechanical stress. Particularly, implants and implant-supported therapies necessitate surgery and a lengthy recovery period (B.Eswaran 2014).

Even though implants have disadvantages, they are currently the most popular treatment for tooth loss and are favored by the majority of patients. According to the American Academy of Implant Dentistry, 1 percent of the U.S. population has already

been implanted, and this ratio increases by 500,000 annually (Uppal 2015). Implants can be constructed from a variety of materials, including ceramics, metals, and their alloys (Duraccio, Federico Mussano, and Faga 2015). Titanium and titanium alloys are the preferred materials due to their equivalent mechanical resistance with teeth, high biocompatibility, and direct contact with bone tissue (Nicholson 2020). Conversely, titanium implants have certain limitations.

1.2. Implant Materials

Dental implants are made from various materials, but the most widely utilizied materials are titanium and zirconium (Figure 1.) (Duraccio, Mussano, and Faga 2015). Titanium has been utilized in dental implants for decades and is well-known for its durability and biocompatibility (Luo et al. 2020). It is known as a nontoxic metal and is capable of osseointegration with bone tissue (Guglielmotti, Olmedo, and Cabrini 2019). Titanium implants have a high success rate reported as up to 99% (Nicholson 2020). In addition, zirconium is a newer material, and success rate was reported as up to 92% (Rodriguez et al. 2018). Zirconium implants, which are biocompatible and have comparable strength to titanium, are frequently preferred due to their tooth-colored appearance, which can produce a more natural-looking result than titanium implants (Patil 2015). Furthermore, zirconium is highly resistant to corrosion, making it an ideal material for metal-sensitive patients (Chopra et al. 2022).

Both titanium and zirconium have advantages and disadvantages, and the option of implant material depends on some factors, including the patient's medical history, the implant's location, and the preferences of the dental professionals. In general, titanium implants are more prevalent and have a longer track record of success, whereas zirconium implants are a more recent option supported by an expanding body of research. Titanium and zirconium are both effective materials for dental implants, each with its own advantages. Patients should discuss the benefits and drawbacks of each material with their dentist in order to determine which material best suits their individual requirements.



Figure 1. General Implant Materials used in Dental Implantology.

1.2.1. Titanium and Titanium Alloys

Titanium is great material for dental implants due to its low density, high strength, good corrosion resistance, and biocompatibility (Simona Baltatu et al. 2019). Titanium is significantly more compatible with bone tissue than the majority of other metals (Bosshardt, Chappuis, and Buser 2016). This characteristic is essential for the successful implantation and prolonged use of dental implants. Especially, titanium alloys are utilized specifically for high-temperature resistance or higher strength requirements, thereby enhancing the hull's properties (Dai et al. 2016). According to properties, Ti-6Al-4V is the most widely utilized metal alloy for dental implants (Åkerfeldt, Antti, and Pederson 2016).

Depending on the limitations and time period implant failure may occur (Sakka, Baroudi, and Nassani 2012; Chrcanovic et al. 2016). Early implant failure can be caused by non-sterile implants, mismatched surfaces, susceptibility to infection, smoking, and alcohol consumption (Kate, Palaskar, and Kapoor 2017; Alvim-Pereira et al. 2008; Olmedo-Gaya et al. 2016). In addition to these factors, surface oxidation and bacterial colonization may cause implant failure at a later stage (Sakka, Baroudi, and Nassani 2012). Titanium allergy, toxicity, and infections are the primary reasons for its limitation. Titanium allergy is a late-type immune system allergic reaction, and the symptoms of titanium allergy sufferers are highly variable (Table 2). These may include basic skin lesions, contact dermatitis, muscle pain, and chronic fatigue (Goutam et al. 2014). Titanium toxicity begins with surface oxidation by dissolved oxygens in saliva; at the conclusion of surface oxidation, titanium dioxide forms on the implant surface; and if titanium dioxide particles disseminate to surrounding tissue, the patient may experience titanium toxicity. Additionally, TiO2 particles were detected in the cells of the adjacent tissue after implantation (Kim et al. 2019). Nevertheless, the success rate of titanium and alloy dental implants is exceptionally high and they have many advantages (Table 1.). According to numerous studies, implants have a success rate of up to 99 % and compared to other dental treatment methods, this rate is quite high (Karoussis et al. 2004; Nicholson 2020).

Biocompatibility	Titanium and its alloys are nonreactive and compatible with body tissues. (Sidambe 2014).
Durability	Due to their exceptional strength, titanium and metal alloys are the most durable materials utilized in dental implants and are highly resistant to corrosion. (Elias et al. 2015).
Bone integration	Biocompatibility of titanium implants ensures optimal bone integration. (Guillaume 2016; Guglielmotti, Olmedo, and Cabrini 2019).
Easy sterilization	Titanium and metal alloys can be sterilized at high temperature and high pressure. Therefore, sterilization of dental implants is easy and safe (Sundaram Muthuraman 2015).
Aesthetics	The color and sheen of titanium implants are compatible with those of natural teeth. In addition, they are less visible than other implants, making them more aesthetically pleasing (Kniha et al. 2020).

Table 1. Advantages of Titanium and Titanium Alloy Dental Implants;

High Cost	Titanium and metal alloy dental implants are not cost-effective (Okereke, Paul Onyenegecha, and Jude Njoku 2021).
Implant-Related Infections	Titanium implants are carriers for microorganisms during the bone integration process. For this reason, the implant must be placed correctly and sterilized properly (Liaw, Delfini, and Abrahams 2015).
Risk of recurrence	There may be bone loss in some parts of the area where the implant is placed. In this case, the implant must be reinserted (Sukegawa et al. 2020).

Table 2. Disadvantages of Titanium and Titanium Alloy Dental Implants;

In conclusion, titanium and titanium alloy dental implants are the most widely utilized dental implants because of their biocompatibility, durability, and bone integration properties. However, there are disadvantages, such as high costs and risk of danger. Therefore, patients who choose titanium or titanium alloys for dental implant treatment should have a thorough conversation with their specialist regarding these materials.

1.2.2. Zirconium and Zirconium Alloys

In recent years, zirconium has become a popular material for dental applications. Due to their durability, biocompatibility, and aesthetic qualities, zirconium dental implants have gained popularity (Depprich et al. 2008). Due to their lower thermal conductivity compared to titanium implants, zirconium implants may be more suitable for patients with heat or cold sensitivity (Osman and Swain 2015; Sivaraman et al. 2018).

Many studies show that zirconium dental implants have high biocompatibility, compatibility with adjacent teeth and surrounding tissues, and implant stability (Depprich et al. 2008; Michelle Grandin, Berner, and Dard 2012). According to the findings of the

research, there is a limited amount of information regarding the success rate of zirconium dental implants. Due to its outstanding biomechanical properties, biocompatibility, and tooth-like color, zirconia has been investigated as a potential substitute for titanium as a dental implant material. A research that examined the osseointegration of zirconia implants with a modified ablative surface at the ultrastructural level found that the surface characteristics of the implant affected the behavior of osteoblastic cells cultivated on the implant (Depprich et al. 2008). Another study compared bone remodeling around conventionally loaded and early-loaded titanium and titanium-zirconium alloy dental implants and found that both types of implants demonstrated excellent bone remodeling (Akça et al. 2015).

Some disadvantages of zirconium dental implants should be considered. One disadvantage is that zirconium dioxide implants generate substantially more anomalies than titanium and titanium-zirconium implants, which can negatively impact the imaging quality of cone-beam computed tomography (Sancho-Puchades, Hämmerle, and Benic 2015). The utilization of diameter-reduced implants, such as zirconium implants, may result in an over incidence of implant fractures (Gigandet et al. 2014). Moreover, commercially pure zirconium and its alloys are known for their high corrosion resistance; however, their biocompatibility is closely related to their surface properties, such as the composition of the protective oxide deposit and the surface topography (Branzoi, Iordoc, and Codescu 2008). Zirconium implants have demonstrated promise as a biocompatible, high-strength and another option to pure titanium; however, more research is required to fully comprehend their performance and potential drawbacks (Michelle Grandin, Berner, and Dard 2012).

In conclusion, zirconium and zirconium alloy dental implants offer favorable outcomes in terms of biocompatibility, esthetics, and implant stability. However, additional research is required, and titanium implants are not commonly utilized to replace them.

1.3. Dental Implant Failure

Failure of dental implants is a essential concern for both patients and dentists. According to a retrospective study, the overall implant failure rate was 10.5% over 12 years (Borba et al. 2017). Smoking, radiotherapy, diabetes, osteoporosis, bruxism, proton pump inhibitor (PPI) ingestion, implant site, and implant length are among the categories of factors that contribute to dental implant failure (H. Chen et al. 2013). Bruxism contributes to technical/biological complications of dental implants and plays a role in dental implant failure. The failure rate of prostheses in bruxers was higher than in non-bruxers, in accordance with a meta-analysis (Zhou et al. 2016). The systemic use of proton pump inhibitors (PPI) is another factor that contributes to dental implant failure. A retrospective study found that PPI intake negatively affects the osseointegration of dental implants (Ali Altay et al. 2019).

One of the factors that can affect the success or failure of dental implants is the implant site at the bone tissue (Fouda 2020). This situation reported that short dental implants are an attractive and minimally invasive alternative to bone augmentation procedures for the implantation of lengthier implants, with both groups exhibiting comparable results approximately 11 years after loading (Tallarico et al. 2020). In addition, bacterial contamination at the time of implant insertion can lead to implant failure (Deeb et al. 2015). When contemplating dental implant treatment, dentists should consider the mentioned factors. To identify additional risk factors and develop strategies to prevent dental implant failure, additional research is required.

Some common causes of dental implant failure include;

Rejection: Dental implant rejection, occurs when the body's immune system reacts negatively to a dental implant and attempts to reject it (Baseri et al. 2020).

Poor implant placement: The implant can fail if it is positioned incorrectly or if it is inserted too deeply or too shallowly (Bassir et al. 2019).

Poor bone quality: To effectively integrate with the jawbone, dental implants need a certain level of bone density. In case of the patient has inadequate bone quality, the risk of implant failure can increase (Shibli et al. 2007; Turkyilmaz and McGlumphy 2008).

Infection: Infections can occur both during and after implant implantation. In the absence of prompt treatment, an infection can result in implant failure (Deeb et al. 2015). This infection affects the tissues surrounding an implant. It is a common cause of implant failure and can occur when the patient avoids oral hygiene. (Canullo et al. 2016; Pimentel et al. 2018).

Implant fracture: Although uncommon, dental implants can fracture, particularly if the patient grinds their teeth or bites down on hard objects (Sánchez-Pérez et al. 2010).

Preventing implant failure requires detailed planning and execution of the implant implantation procedure, as well as appropriate aftercare and maintenance. To ensure the implant is in excellent condition, patients must adhere to their dentist's oral hygiene instructions, abstain from smoking, and attend regular checkups. In conclusion, dental implant failure can be due to a variety of factors, however, it can be avoided with proper planning, execution, and maintenance. Patients must collaborate closely with their dentist to ensure the long-term success of their dental implants.

1.3.1 Osseointegration

Osseointegration is the process of a direct connection between the surface of an implant and the biological bone tissue (Chang, Lang, and Giannobile 2010). For the best osseointegration process, the bone must be robust and vascular. The implant's screw thread is gently placed into the alveolar bone under anesthesia, concealed beneath the gingival mucosa, and left undisturbed for two to four months (Quiney, Brimblet, and Hodge 1990). Several implant design factors influence the osseointegration phenomenon (Coelho et al. 2015). The effectiveness of an implant depends on its biological integration, which can be severely compromised by foreign body reactions (Kaur et al. 2010). After the sterilization of surface contaminants such as bacterial debris and manufacturing residues can remain on orthopedic implants and inhibit osseointegration. (Bonsignore et al. 2011). Therefore, osseointegration is indispensable for the long-term success of dental and orthopedic implants (Parithimarkalaignan and Padmanabhan 2013).

The surface characteristics of the implant, the surgical technique used to place the implant, and the patient's overall health and immune system all influence osseointegration, according to research (Salvi et al. 2015; Sayed et al. 2021). As they provide a better environment for bone cell attachment and growth, implants with uneven or textured surfaces tend to facilitate greater osseointegration than smooth implants (Wong et al. 1995; Łukaszewska-Kuska et al. 2019). The initial stability of the implant is also essential for osseointegration, as implant micromovements can impede bone growth and integration (Salvi et al. 2015). The use of specialized surgical techniques and instruments, such as implant drills and osteotomes, can aid in the placement and stability of dental implants (Sayed et al. 2021). Several implant materials and designs have been created as a result of osseointegration research, which promotes enhanced bone growth and integration. For instance, it has been demonstrated that titanium implants with uneven surfaces have exceptional osseointegration properties and are commonly utilized in dental and orthopedic surgery (Ma et al. 2017). Other surface treatments, including hydroxyapatite coating, have also been examined for their potential to enhance osseointegration (Hermida et al. 2010). Overall, Understanding the influencing factors of osseointegration is crucial for implant placement success and long-term stability.

So, for the long-term efficacy of dental and orthopedic implants, osseointegration is a crucial procedure. The osseointegration process can be affected by implant surface characteristics, surgical technique, and patient health, according to research. Numerous researches in this area have led to the development of implant materials and designs that are more effective.

1.3.1.1 Prerequisites for Osseointegration

Osseointegration requires specific conditions for implant integration to be successful (Reyes et al. 2007). These requirements include implant design and material selection, bone quantity and quality, surgical technique, and a favorable recuperating environment.

Implant Design and Material Selection: The implant material should be biocompatible and resistant to corrosion, damage, and fracture. Additionally, the implant surface should be designed to encourage bone growth and attachment (Klokkevold et al. 1997; Oliveira et al. 2015). It is believed that roughened implant surfaces promote osseointegration (Scarano et al. 2003). Utilizing highly biocompatible implant materials, such as titanium, has produced implant systems with long-term stability (Khang et al. 2001). The geometry of an implant's surface can play a significant role in its early stabilization, thereby enhancing the dynamics of tissue regeneration (Simmons, Valiquette, and Pilliar 1999).

Bone Quantity and Quality: For the successful osseointegration of dental implants, adequate bone quantity and quality are required (Rues et al. 2021). The implant must be positioned in a region with sufficient bone volume and density to provide a stable and long-lasting interface. Important as well is the condition of the bone tissue, as poor bone quality can reduce implant stability and increase the risk of implant failure (Javed et al. 2011; Rues et al. 2021). The quantity and quality of bone are crucial to the efficacy of dental implant surgery (Sençimen et al. 2011).

Surgical Technique: Osseointegration relies heavily on the surgical technique used to implant the prosthesis. The implant must be positioned with precision and minimal damage to the neighboring bone tissue (Von Arx et al. 2013). Utilizing specialized surgical instruments, such as implant drills and osteotomes, can aid in ensuring the placement and stability of implants (Nkenke et al. 2002; Büchter et al. 2005; Bilhan et al. 2010). Bone augmentation with novel grafting materials can also promote osseointegration (Norton et al. 2003).

Healing Environment: A favorable healing environment is essential for osseointegration to be successful. Cigarette smoking, uncontrolled diabetes, and other systemic conditions that impede wound healing may impact the healing environment. In addition, good oral hygiene is necessary to prevent bacterial colonization around the implant, which can result in inflammation and bone loss (De Molon et al. 2013; Bonsignore et al. 2013).

In conclusion, successful osseointegration requires proper implant design and material selection, sufficient bone quantity and quality, an appropriate surgical technique, and a favorable healing environment. Optimal implant success requires an evaluation of the patient's bone quality and quantity, as well as their medical history and lifestyle routines.

1.3.2 Implant Infection

Dental implant infections are a prevalent cause of implant failure. *Fusobacterium spp, Streptococcus mutans, Staphylococcus epidermidis,* and *Porphyromonas gingivalis* are the bacteria most frequently associated with dental implant infections. Periimplantitis, a type of dental implant infection, can limit clinical efficacy and impose substantial health and financial consequences on patients and healthcare providers. (Norowski and Bumgardner 2009).

Multiple factors may rise the risk of bacterial infection in dental implants. A number of factors, including poor dental hygiene, smoking, systemic diseases such as diabetes, and compromised immune systems, increase the risk of infection (Almehmadi 2019). There is a complex connection between titanium dental implants, bone, and the immune system. So, in the immune system, macrophages play a crucial role in the osseointegration process (Amengual-Peñafiel et al. 2021). The incidence of inflammatory complications following the surgical phase of dental implant placement ranges between 0.4% and 5%, and both early and late complications are possible (Tymofieiev et al. 2022). Moreover, poor oral hygiene may increase the risk of mesh infection following hernia surgery (East et al. 2022).

Using contaminated surgical apparatus or implant components during implant implantation may increase the risk of bacterial infection (Deeb et al. 2015). Signs of a bacterial infection in dental implants include pain, edema, redness, bleeding, and secretion from the implant site (Coli et al. 2017). Antimicrobial agents have been found to effectively decrease the occurrence of surgical wound infections in the field of oral implantology. It is recommended to administer antibiotic prophylaxis for Class 2 (clean-contaminated) surgical procedures, such as dental implant and bone grafting procedures, in order to maintain sufficient blood levels to combat bacterial contamination (Resnik and Misch 2008).

The "race for the surface" has been the subject of extensive study in the disciplines of biomaterials and implant dentistry (Wandiyanto et al. 2019). It refers to the competition between bacteria to colonize a surface, such as the surface of an implant, and implant manufacturers' efforts to design surface treatments that limit bacterial adhesion and enhance osseointegration (Veerachamy et al. 2014; Cox et al. 2017). Adhesion, proliferation, and migration of biomaterials are affected by their microstructural surface topography, surface chemistry, and surface energy/wettability (Feller et al. 2015). Prior to clinical use, titanium dental implants are frequently subjected to surface modification techniques. Surface modification is a crucial stage in the fabrication of dental implants. Several techniques such as sputtering deposition, sandblasting, plasma etching, plasma spray deposition, acid etching and cathodic arc deposition, have been investigated over the years in an effort to increase the effectiveness of dental implants (Mandracci et al. 2016). Typically, porous coatings for enhanced osseointegration have a rougher surface, which makes implants more susceptible to bacterial colonization and biofilm formation (Braem et al. 2014).

The bacterial biofilm must be eliminated and a healthy peri-implant environment must be restored to treat a bacterial infection in dental implants. Non-surgical therapeutic techniques include mechanical debridement, antibacterial medications, and laser therapy. Surgical intervention, such as implantoplasty, bone grafting, or implant removal, may be necessary when non-surgical treatment fails. Good oral hygiene, routine dental examinations, and sterile surgical techniques can reduce the risk of bacterial infection during implant placement (Larsen and Fiehn 2017). The potential of silver nanoparticles to mitigate bacterial adhesion to dental implant surfaces and inhibit biofilm formation presents a promising avenue for mitigating the incidence of peri-implantitis (Sivolella et al. 2012). For the prevention of peri-implantitis, antibacterial procedures of dental implant materials have been devised, including the use of a titanium alloy containing copper and a light-curable bioadhesive hydrogel with antibacterial properties (R. Liu et al. 2016; Shirzaei Sani et al. 2019).

Patients have been advised to take prophylactic antibiotics to prevent postsurgical infections (Deeb et al. 2015). Antibiotic overuse has led to pervasive antimicrobial resistance and the emergence of multidrug-resistant bacterial strains, as supported by the results of the studies presented (Morrison and Zembower 2020; Fernández, Bert, and Nicolas-Chanoine 2016; Mancuso et al. 2021). In the field of medicine, antibiotic resistance is a growing concern for the entire human population (Perez et al., 2007). Antibiotic misuse and overuse are the primary causes of antibiotic resistance. The emergence of antimicrobial resistance is a global concern (Choudhury, Panda, and Singh 2012). The prevalence of antibiotic resistance in gram-negative bacteria has experienced a significant surge in the last twenty years. This rise has frequently been linked to elevated

rates of mortality and increased financial burdens on healthcare systems (Eichenberger and Thaden 2019).

To reduce the risk of implant failure, it is crucial to prevent bacterial infection in dental implants. Good oral hygiene, routine dental examinations, and sterile surgical techniques can reduce the risk of bacterial infection during implant placement. Overall, early recognition and treatment of bacterial infection are essential for implant preservation and the prevention of subsequent complications. As a result, various therapies are required for the prevention of infection.

1.4. Prevention Strategies for Implant Infection

Implant procedures nonetheless pose a risk of severe consequences due to implant-associated infections induced by surface-adhering bacteria that persist as biofilm (Arciola, Campoccia, and Montanaro 2018). Various strategies have been developed to prevent and treat implant infections, such as systemic and local antibiotic therapy, non-fouling surfaces, and the utilization of antimicrobial agents and peptides (Figure 2). Nonetheless, each strategy has its advantages and disadvantages. It is envisaged that the anticipated increase in the use of implanted medical devices will result in an increase in the number of infections associated with these cases.



Antibiotic Loading



Antimicrobial Agent Coatings

Antimicrobial Peptides

Figure 2. Current Approaches for Developing Infection Resistant Implants.

Hence, the prevention of bacterial colonization and biofilm formation on implanted medical devices remains a significant concern. In-vivo studies have demonstrated the efficacy of antimicrobial implant coatings in mitigating infection, inflammation, and biofilm formation (Harris et al. 2017).

1.4.1 Antibiotic Treatment

Treatment with antibiotics is a typical method for managing implant-associated infections. However, rising antibiotic resistance, the spread of antibiotic-resistant bacteria between animals and people, and the high expense of treating infections have made implant-associated infections difficult to manage (H. Li and Li 2013).

Antibiotic resistance is a major worldwide health and economic challenge. When microorganisms develop the ability to resist antibiotics, they render them useless against bacterial illnesses. Bacteria possess various mechanisms through which they can acquire resistance to antibiotics. These mechanisms encompass the inhibition of drug target accessibility, alterations in the structure and safeguarding of antibiotic targets, as well as direct modification or inactivation of medications (Blair et al. 2014). Antibiotic resistance is prevalent in both clinical and non-clinical settings. In clinical contexts, antibiotic resistance is associated with increased morbidity, prolonged hospitalization, additional expenses, and mortality (Sipahi 2014). Human activities in non-clinical situations contribute to the spread of antibiotic resistance beyond ecological boundaries, hence increasing the problem (Tripathi and Cytryn 2017).

The establishment and spread of antibiotic resistance is a worldwide issue that necessitates a diversified solution. The use of antibiotics appropriately is essential for reducing the development and spread of antibiotic resistance (Romo and Quirós 2019).

However, antibiotics are not always necessary, and their misuse and abuse contribute to the development of antibiotic resistance (Hoxha, Malaj, and Malaj 2015). In addition, the emergence of highly drug-resistant bacteria, such as carbapenem-resistant Enterobacteriaceae, highly drug-resistant Pseudomonas aeruginosa, and highly drugresistant Acinetobacter baumannii, poses a significant threat to public health (Eichenberger and Thaden 2019). So, antibiotic resistance is a complicated and developing worldwide issue requiring a diverse solution. The use of antibiotics appropriately, as well as continuing research and development of novel medicines and alternative therapies, are essential for reducing the emergence and spread of antibiotic resistance.

Platelet-rich plasma (PRP), which has demonstrated potential antibacterial characteristics, is an alternative strategy (H. Li and Li 2013). Also, antimicrobial coatings may be applied to implants to combat implant-related infections in patients (Vermeltfoort et al. 2008). Moreover, tethered antibiotics offer promise as a novel and feasible method for minimizing implant-associated infections (Shapiro et al. 2012).

The existing conventional susceptibility testing methods employed for microorganisms derived from infected implants do not adequately reflect the true susceptibility patterns. Consequently, the most effective antibiotic treatment approach for infections associated with implants remains undetermined. When comparing the efficacy of rifampicin-containing combinations to combinations containing vancomycin, linezolid, and daptomycin for the treatment of *Staphylococcus aureus* biofilm infections, it has been observed that the former exhibits superior results in both in vivo and in vitro settings (Jørgensen et al. 2016). In addition to the systemic administration of antibiotics, topical antibiotic prophylaxis for the prevention of surgical site infection during cardiac device installation operations has been examined (Ozyildirim 2014). Furthermore, hydrogel administration of lysostaphin has been demonstrated to eradicate Staphylococcus aureus infection of orthopedic implants and promote fracture healing (Johnson et al. 2018).

In conclusion, antibiotic therapy is a standard method for treating implantassociated infections. Due to rising antibiotic resistance and other obstacles, however, researchers have been exploring novel techniques such as platelet-rich plasma, antimicrobial coatings, and tethered antibiotics. While the ideal antibiotic regimen for treating implant-associated infections has not been determined, rifampicin-containing combinations and cefuroxime have showed good outcomes in several trials. In addition, topical antibiotic prophylaxis and hydrogel administration of lysostaphin has been explored as viable methods.

1.4.2 Antimicrobial Agents

Antimicrobial agents are crucial for avoiding implant infections, which can result in life-threatening complications or even death. Due to rising antibiotic resistance, the spread of antibiotic-resistant bacteria between animals and people, and the high cost of treating infections, implant-associated infections are posing a growing challenge to the global healthcare business. Therefore, researchers have been investigating a variety of anti-infection techniques.

Utilizing coatings that release antimicrobial agents is a technique for minimizing implant-associated infections. Researchers describe coatings that release antimicrobial agents (i.e., active release methods) for preventing implant-associated infections (Hetrick and Schoenfisch 2006). Platelet-rich plasma, which has potential antibacterial capabilities, is another method. Based on the possible antibacterial characteristics of PRP, the proposed technique that may be useful in reducing implant-associated infection (H. Li and Li 2013). Using bacteriophages as antimicrobial agents is a further innovative technique for combating implant-related infections (Moojen 2013). Despite the encouraging outcomes of several techniques, virtually none have reached the clinical application phase. Another antimicrobial agent that has been evaluated for its effectiveness in reducing implant-associated infections is sphingosine. The antibacterial effectiveness of sphingosine against sessile biofilm-grown *Staphylococcus epidermidis* was examined by researchers. The results indicated that the application of sphingosine solution resulted in the eradication of 99.9% of the microorganisms present on different implant surfaces, such as titanium, steel, and polymethylmethacrylate (Beck et al. 2020).

The effectiveness of antibiotics and antibiotic-loaded adipose-derived stem cells (ADSCs) in reducing the development of abscesses in rodents with implant-related infections has also been evaluated. In a rat model of implant-associated infection, researchers evaluated the antibacterial activity and therapeutic efficacy of antibiotic-loaded ADSCs and an antibiotic in local therapy (Yoshitani et al. 2020).

In conclusion, antimicrobial agents are crucial for avoiding implant-related infections. Numerous techniques, such as coatings that release antimicrobial chemicals, platelet-rich plasma, bacteriophages, and sphingosine that actively inhibits bacterial adherence or has intrinsic antibacterial qualities, have been investigated by researchers. Nevertheless, several of these methods are still in the experimental phase, and further study is required to evaluate their effectiveness in avoiding implant-associated infections.

1.4.3 Nonfouling Surfaces

Non-fouling surfaces have been developed to prevent the adhesion and dissemination of microorganisms on the surfaces of implantable materials. Numerous biological applications, including diagnostic biosensors and implants that contact blood or tissue, require non-fouling surfaces (Y. Liu, Chang, and Sun 2014). The development of nonfouling surfaces is necessary for controlling the interfacial behavior of various biomedical systems, including implanted medical devices, membranes, biosensors, and devices used for storing biological fluids (Manfredini et al. 2019).

Polyethylene glycol (PEG) and its polymeric derivatives have traditionally been extensively employed as non-fouling materials in various biomedical applications such as implantation, surface modification, biosensors, and drug administration (Guo et al. 2021). Recent investigations have found zwitterionic polymers as promising alternatives to PEG-based surfaces for non-fouling properties (Ladd et al. 2008). Zwitterionic polymer surfaces consist of a homogeneous mixture of charge groups that are balanced at the nanoscale. These charge groups can be either zwitterionic or mixed charged groups. The robust hydration of these groups through ionic solvation is what allows for their stability (S. Chen and Jiang 2008). Strong surface hydration has been postulated as a primary non-fouling process contributing (Leng et al. 2015).

Super non-fouling surfaces are resistant to protein attachment and have several uses in implant technology, medication administration, blood-compatible materials, biosensors, and maritime coatings (Schmüser et al. 2016). Two strategies for preventing the adhesion and spread of bacteria on the surfaces of implantable materials are the application of antimicrobial and non-fouling coatings (Cheng et al. 2008). Biosensors, medical implants, and drug delivery vehicles rely heavily on the development of nonfouling surfaces (G. Li et al. 2010).

Several biomedical applications, including diagnostic biosensors and blood- or tissue-contacting implants, require nonfouling surfaces. The development of non-fouling

surfaces is essential for controlling the interfacial behavior of various biomedical systems, including implanted medical devices, membranes, biosensors, and devices used for storing biological fluids. Zwitterionic polymers have been identified as viable substitutes for antifouling surface materials based on polyethylene glycol (PEG). The identification of robust surface hydration has been recognized as a significant factor in the mechanisms that prevent fouling.

1.4.4 Antimicrobial Peptides

The use of antimicrobial peptides (AMPs) to prevent implant-associated infections has emerged as a viable technique. Infections of implants are a serious issue in orthopedic surgery, since they can result in implant failure, longer hospitalization, and higher healthcare expenses. AMPs are naturally occurring peptides with antimicrobial action against bacteria, viruses, and fungi. They are desirable candidates for implant coatings because they are less likely than conventional antibiotics to produce bacterial resistance.

Several studies have studied the use of AMPs in the prevention of implantassociated infections. For instance, Yazici et al. investigated the antibacterial activity of a chimeric peptide on implant material against a range of microorganisms, such as Streptococcus mutans and Staphylococcus aureus, in vitro (Hilal Yazici et al. 2016). Sjostrom et al. achieved antimicrobial Ti and Ti alloy implant surfaces by immobilizing antibiotics, AMPs, or nanoparticles to the implant surface (Sjöström, Nobbs, and Su 2016). Ishak et al. investigated the use of nature-inspired antimicrobial surfaces and AMPs to combat implant-associated infections (Ishak et al. 2022). Melicherčík et al. investigated the efficacy of short linear α -helical AMPs in treating bone infection and preventing microbial biofilm formation on model implants caused by osteomyelitiscausing microorganisms (Melicherčík, Nešuta, and Čeřovský 2018). Wisdom and colleagues conducted a study in which they designed a biomimetic interface utilizing a chimeric peptide. This peptide was created by combining a titanium binding peptide with an antimicrobial peptide (AMP) into a single molecule. The purpose of this design was to facilitate binding to the surface of an implant and provide antimicrobial properties against two specific bacteria, namely S. mutans and S. epidermidis (Wisdom et al. 2016). Chen et al. used AMPs to functionalize titanium implants and prevent bacterial infection (J. Chen et al. 2019). Hill et al. highlighted the current role and mechanism of AMPs in preventing and eradicating orthopedic device-related infections (Hill, Jain, and Iyengar 2022).

Before an antimicrobial peptide (AMP) can be utilized as a therapeutic agent, it is necessary to fulfill several prerequisites. These include: i) demonstrating strong antibacterial activity; ii) exhibiting minimal toxicity towards mammalian membranes; iii) possessing high proteolytic stability; iv) exhibiting low serum binding; and v) being costeffective (J. Li et al. 2017). There are numerous methods for examining AMPs, including mutation-based empirical methods, statistically-based bioinformatics methods, and MDlike tools.

AMPs work by disrupting the membranes of microbial cells. The membranes of microbial cells are made up of lipids, which are fatty molecules. AMPs are amphipathic, meaning that they have both hydrophilic (water-loving) and hydrophobic (water-hating) regions. The hydrophilic regions of AMPs interact with water, while the hydrophobic regions interact with the lipids in the microbial membrane (Moravej et al. 2018). This interaction disrupts the structure of the membrane, causing it to leak and eventually die.

Here are some of the mechanisms of action of antimicrobial peptides:

Membrane disruption: AMPs can disrupt the membranes of microbial cells, causing them to leak and die (Figure 3A) (Moravej et al. 2018; Kumar, Kizhakkedathu, and Straus 2018).

Pore formation: AMPs can form pores in the membranes of microbial cells, allowing water and ions to flow into the cells, causing them to swell and burst (Figure 3B) (Benfield and Henriques 2020; Q. Y. Zhang et al. 2021).

Protein denaturing: AMPs can denature proteins in microbial cells, making them non-functional (Figure 3C) (Kumar, Kizhakkedathu, and Straus 2018; Moravej et al. 2018).

DNA damage: AMPs can damage DNA in microbial cells, preventing them from replicating (Figure 3D) (Benfield and Henriques 2020; Q. Y. Zhang et al. 2021).



Figure 3. Mechanism of Action of Antimicrobial Peptides.

Indeed, there is a wealth of documented evidence regarding various mechanisms that lead to the instability and disruption of bacterial membranes. These mechanisms include the formation of pores or interactions with the outer leaflet. Among the extensively studied modes of action are the carpet model, toroidal pore, barrel type, and several other variations (Cardoso et al. 2019). In the 'barrel-stave' model, peptides accumulate on the membrane's surface before inserting themselves into the lipid core. Since AMP molecules interact with both the phosphate groups and the lipid tails, electrostatic and hydrophobic interactions are crucial.

The toroidal pores are characterized by a surface that is coated with phosphate head groups. Due to the limited hydrophobic interaction between AMP molecules and the lipid tails, the primary mode of interaction between AMPs and toroidal pores is predominantly electrostatic in nature. While the toroidal-pore model shares similarities with the barrel-stave model in terms of its process, it distinguishes itself by involving the penetration of peptide helices into the membrane and their subsequent bonding with lipids (J. Li et al. 2017).

The carpet model posits that the outer leaflet exhibits a significant abundance of AMP molecules on its surface, while the inner leaflet does not demonstrate any binding of AMP. The significant difference in charge and surface tension between the two sides

of the membrane will ultimately result in the catastrophic disruption of membrane integrity, causing the release of cytoplasmic substances, ions, and biomolecules (J. Li et al. 2017).

The Detergent-Like model is based on the intercalation of the AMPs into the bilayer. Complex is the interaction of detergents with lipid membranes above the critical micelle concentration (CMC), when AMPs reside in a micellar, aggregated state (Cardoso et al. 2019).

In conclusion, AMPs have shown great potential in preventing implant-associated infections. They have broad-spectrum antimicrobial activity and are less likely to induce bacterial resistance than traditional antibiotics. Further research is needed to optimize the use of AMPs in implant coatings and to evaluate their long-term efficacy and safety in clinical settings.

1.5 Immobilization Approaches to Implant Surfaces

In recent times, there has been a growing interest in the field of biological surface modification as a potential remedy for the difficulties associated with the integration of implants and tissue. In the preceding section, a comprehensive analysis was provided regarding the significance of immobilized biomolecules on implant surfaces in facilitating effective integration. This section will analyze the principles underlying immobilization strategies employed in the biofunctionalization of implant surfaces. The immobilization principle enhances the stability and utility of biomolecules. Nonetheless, the random orientation and structural deformation that occur after attachment may diminish the activity of the biomolecules. To maintain a molecule's biological activity, immobilization techniques must not modify the molecule's structure or functionalizing implants with biomolecules (Figure 4). As a novel approach, genetically engineered peptides for inorganics (GEPI) promise a more precise biomimetic immobilization procedure and represent an alternative to physical and chemical techniques (Figure 4).





Physical and Chemical Immobilization

Biomimetic Immobilization

Figure 4. Peptide Immobilization Approaches for Implant Surfaces

1.5.1 Physical Immobilization Approach

The immobilization technique referred to as physical immobilization, or adsorption, is a simple method that can be conducted under mild conditions, resulting in minimal disruption to biomolecules. Nevertheless, the process of biomolecule linking to titanium implants is highly influenced by various experimental parameters, including pH, temperature, and solvent, when the implants are immersed in a solution. Adsorption on surfaces is predominantly attributed to intermolecular forces, encompassing ionic bonding, hydrophobic interactions, and polar interactions. The heterogeneity and arbitrary orientation of the resulting layer primarily stem from the unique optimal conformation of each molecule, which serves to minimize repulsive forces from the surface and previously bound protein during adsorption. It is crucial to highlight that the initial step in chemical immobilization involves the physical adsorption of proteins, while the subsequent stage involves the covalent attachment of proteins to the surface.

In the context of protein adsorption onto a surface, it is imperative that the overall change in free energy is negative, which can be attributed to either enthalpic or entropic factors. During the process of adsorption, many proteins undergo conformational changes, resulting in a weakening of their ordered structural composition. The aforementioned property exhibits an entropic benefit and has the potential to serve as a driving force for adsorption (Norde et al. 1986). The driving force behind adsorption can be attributed to the enthalpic interactions between the protein and the surface. The

interactions that exhibit the highest degree of prominence in various systems include Van der Waals interactions, hydrophobic interactions, electrostatic interactions, and hydrogen bonding (Rusmini, Zhong, and Feijen 2007).

The physical attachment of proteins is directly influenced by the surface properties of inorganic materials. To improve protein adsorption, it may be necessary to modify the surface. Hydrophobicity is a surface property that can be modified through a diverse range of methods. It is hypothesized that hydrophobic interactions between the solid surface and the protein exhibit a greater propensity for protein adsorption compared to hydrophilic interactions. While not universally consistent, this phenomenon is often observed in experimental settings (Rusmini, Zhong, and Feijen 2007). Some researchers determined that fibrinogen preferentially adheres to a hydrophobicity gradient surface (Elwing et al. 1988).

According to the scientific literature, PEG derivatives are commonly employed compounds for the purpose of mitigating protein adsorption on solid surfaces, particularly in the realm of biomedical applications. Surfaces that have been modified with polyethylene glycol (PEG) demonstrate a relatively reduced level of protein adsorption, provided that the PEG chains are of sufficient length and the density of surface molecules is high. The efficacy of the PEG layer in repelling can be interpreted in two distinct manners (Malmsten, Emoto, and Van Alstine 1998; M. Zhang, Desai, and Ferrari 1998). The initial high impedance of proteins is maintained by the dense and thick layer of PEG compounds. Furthermore, it should be noted that there are no variables that drive adsorption. Due to the absence of charge in standard PEG-layers, electrostatic interactions alone are inadequate for facilitating protein adhesion (Burns, Van Alstine, and Harris 1995). PEG molecules can also interact with water molecules, preventing the formation of van der Waals bonds between proteins and surfaces (Stupp, 2010). Given these circumstances, the ability of a protein to adhere to a surface that has been modified with polyethylene glycol (PEG) is significantly hindered, unless it can traverse the PEG layer and access the uncovered surface.

In contrast to methodologies such as covalent coupling, adsorption exhibits a relatively low surface burden. Moreover, there is an uncontrolled desorption of biomolecules from the surface. The method of physical permeation of biomolecules involves the retention of a biomolecule by a barrier without forming a chemical bond. Hence, this approach is highly delicate and can be employed for any biomolecule. Nevertheless, barriers are often delicate, and the loss of biomolecules can occur due to shredding or degradation. Furthermore, this methodology is commonly utilized in biosensor applications (Scouten, Luong, and Stephen Brown 1995). The attachment of biomolecules to the surface of implants is achieved through the incorporation of said biomolecules into coatings composed of poly (D, L-lactide) (PDLLA), ethylene vinyl acetate (EVAc), and collagen (Welsh et al. 1995; Fischer et al. 2003). Therefore, the manipulation of biomolecule release from the surface of the implant can be feasibly achieved, rendering it a compelling strategy for the immobilization of bone growth factors.

1.5.2 Chemical Immobilization Approach

The process of covalent attachment is extensively employed in the immobilization of peptides, enzymes, and adhesive proteins onto implant surfaces, despite its inherent complexity and time-intensive nature, when compared to alternative methods of immobilization. One of the primary limitations of this technique is the reduction in protein mobility on the surface, which is directly correlated with the probability of novel protein conformations being present. This drawback is particularly pronounced when proteins are immobilized. The potential existence of deleterious monomer residue on the surface of the implant may give rise to concerns regarding the compatibility of the implant with biological systems at the site of insertion. The utilization of physical adsorption techniques, commonly achieved through the dip-coating method to create a layer with desired characteristics, can effectively overcome challenges encountered in the chemical immobilization procedure. The utilization of physical adsorption has the potential to facilitate the elimination of perilous monomer remnants. However, the inherent instability of surface molecules hinders the successful resolution of the binding challenges that arise between materials and immobilized molecules (Tang, Thevenot, and Hu 2008).

Due to limits in chemical and physical modifications, self-assembled monolayers (SAMs) were developed as a technique to precisely manage the density and conformation of a single or several functional groups on a surface (Love et al. 2005). The entire technique for producing SAMs is comprised of two essential components. Before grafting polymerization onto an activated surface, SAMs must first activate the bulk material's

surface. At the conclusion of the two essential steps, SAMs may produce surfaces that are both flat and chemically well-defined (Arima and Iwata 2007). Obtaining densely packed, well-ordered functions on the surface that approach thermodynamic equilibrium is another advantage of SAMs

Generally, surface acoustic waves (SAWs) encompass functionalities related to pattern and density control. The terminal group that has been chosen can also be utilized as a site for further surface functionalization. The utilization of self-assembled monolayers (SAMs) has been employed to investigate cellular responses in vitro and inflammatory and foreign body reactions in vivo, as well as various other processes associated with implanted biomaterials. This approach has facilitated the understanding of the impact of specific functional groups on particular processes (Faucheux et al. 2004). Nevertheless, there exist restrictions regarding the categories of substances that are compatible with self-assembled monolayers (SAMs). Gold and silver are the most frequently employed substances for rapid functionalization of self-assembled monolayers (SAMs). In order to generate reactive groups, such as amino or aldehyde groups, these surfaces can be derivatized (Sakiyama-Elbert and Hubbell 2003).

1.5.3 Genetically Engineered Peptides for Inorganics

Molecular recognition, which refers to the specific interactions between biomolecules, plays a crucial role in facilitating the various molecular processes necessary for biological functions within living systems. In order to achieve the accurate development of biologically compatible, molecularly-customized soft interfaces on solid surfaces, it is imperative to establish targeted biological interactions between the solid materials and biological components. Solid-binding peptides offer more extensive possibilities for surface biofunctionalization compared to traditional chemical methods that depend on inflexible covalent bonds for attaching molecules to surfaces. The lack of capability exhibited by chemical methods in achieving spatial organization and orientation control of biomolecules on support surfaces poses a significant challenge (Yucesoy et al. 2020). In addition, non-specific binding reduces the functionality or stability of biomolecules. There exist two prerequisites for addressing the aforementioned issues. The immobilization technique must possess a tailored adhesion to the selected solid surface, and it should also be flexible enough to accommodate the attachment of a chemically or genetically affixed probe. Additionally, it should function as an intermediary between the biological molecule and the solid surface. The application of directed evolution methods that leverage genotype-to-phenotype relationships is employed for the purpose of identifying solid-binding peptides, also referred to as genetically engineered peptides for inorganic materials. These peptides exhibit exclusive binding to solid substances through molecular recognition (Yucesoy et al. 2020).

Within this particular segment, the peptide undergoes a process of selforganization on the surface, adopting a conformation that aligns with the structure of the solid lattice. Solid-binding peptides possess a unique biological advantage as they serve as modular building blocks for coupling biological and synthetic elements at the interfaces of biosolids. Through the utilization of the diverse capabilities of biology, it is feasible to manipulate chimeric molecules that possess inherent multifunctionality, thereby demonstrating biofunctional molecular entities including enzymes, cofactors, antimicrobial peptides, antibodies, nucleic acids, and molecular probes that specifically target biomarkers (Figure 5) (Yucesoy et al. 2020). As a example, gold binding, titanium binding, and hydroxyapatite binding peptides were studied in detail and their binding properties were confirmed (Khatayevich et al. 2010; H. Yazici et al. 2013).



Figure 5. Combinatorial Design of Chimeric Constructs (Yucesoy et al. 2020)
Implants can have their biocompatibility, functionality, and durability enhanced by biofunctional coatings and engineered protective molecular biofilms. These coatings and biofilms can be designed to interact in a specific manner with biological systems, to add specific functionality to the implant, or to protect the implant from biological degradation.

Biofunctional coatings can be used to improve the biocompatibility of implants by making them less likely to cause an immune response or be rejected by the body, add specific functionality to implants by enabling them to bind specific molecules or to release drugs or other therapeutic agents in a controlled manner and protect implants from biological degradation by inhibiting the growth of bacteria and other microorganisms on the implant surface (H. Yazici et al. 2013). Engineered protective molecular biofilms can be used to provide a physical barrier between the implant and the surrounding tissue, preventing the migration of cells and proteins to the implant surface, releasing antimicrobial agents that kill bacteria and other microorganisms that may come in contact with the implant, and promoting the growth of tissue around the implant, which can help to anchor the implant in place and improve the implant's long-term success (H. Yazici et al. 2013; Yucesoy et al. 2015; Hilal Yazici et al. 2016).

As a conclusion, biofunctional coatings and engineered protective molecular biofilms are a promising new technology for improving the performance of implants. By using these coatings and biofilms, new implants can be create that are more biocompatible, functional, and durable.

CHAPTER 2

MATERIAL AND METHODS

2.1. Aim of Thesis

The purpose of this study was to design functional chimeric peptides using antimicrobial peptides and hydroxyapatite binding peptides in order to provide an antimicrobial effect to hydroxyapatite-coated titanium dental implants. Before constructing this design, cariogenic AMPs were chosen based on the available literature and databases. The secondary structure analysis was then performed to confirm that the selected AMPs had been chimerized with the hydroxyapatite-binding peptide and maintained their original structures. In secondary structure analysis, chimeric peptides with the minimum structural change were analyzed and promising candidates were chosen.

3-Step analyzing approach determined, including secondary structure analyze, solubility analyze and conformational analyze, to analyze created chimeric peptides (Figure 6). Based on amino acid sequence, promising candidates selected by secondary structure analysis were subjected to solubility analysis as hydrophilic or hydrophobic. In the solubility analysis, promising candidates for chimeric peptides within the optimal range were identified. Finally, promising candidates that came up from the secondary structure and solubility analysis were simulated using molecular dynamics according to the least conformational change.



Figure 6. 3-Step Approach to Analyze Designed Chimeric Peptides

2.2 Peptide Selection and Chimerization

When oral pathogens are considered, implant-failure-causing bacteria such as Streptococcus mutans come to the forefront (Forssten, Björklund, and Ouwehand 2010). In this context, antimicrobial peptides have emerged as viable alternatives to traditional antibiotics for the treatment of oral bacterial infections. Using synthetic combinatorial peptide libraries, novel antimicrobial peptides against Streptococcus mutans, a prominent cariogenic pathogen, and other oral pathogens, particularly in the buccal cavity, have been identified (Song et al. 2014). Many studies have determined the minimum inhibitory concentration (MIC) and minimum bactericidal concentration (MBC) of these peptides, demonstrating their potent antimicrobial activity (Franca et al. 2014; Yucesoy et al. 2015; Hilal Yazici et al. 2016). Cariogenic antimicrobial peptides have demonstrated tremendous potential for preventing dental caries and controlling the development of cariogenic bacteria in the oral cavity.

Therefore, antimicrobial peptides effective against cariogenic bacteria were selected using literature and databases, taking into account the low minimum inhibitory concentration (MIC) value. Also, hydroxyapatite binding peptide was chosen as the solid

binding peptide, since it was aimed to impart antimicrobial effect to hydroxyapatite coated implants.

After peptide selections, selected antimicrobial peptides and hydroxyapatite binding peptide were chimerized with GGG spacer (Figure 7). The purpose of using the GGG spacer here is to provide lateral mobility of the designed chimeric peptides (Yazici et al. 2016). In addition, chimerization was applied to bind the hycroxapatite binding peptide to the N-terminus and C-terminus of each antimicrobial peptide.

Example; AMP1 + HABP1 with GGG Spacer

GLLWHLLHHLLHGGGMLPHHGA MLPHHGAGGGGGLLWHLLHHLLH



Figure 7. An Example for Chimeric Peptide Creation

2.3. Secondary Structure Prediction of Peptides

Peptide secondary structure prediction is the computational or experimental determination of the local conformation of the peptide backbone, which comprises - helices, -sheets, twists, and disordered portions with specified dihedral angles and H-bond patterns. Several approaches, including Chou-Fasman algorithms, the GOR method, neural networks, and deep learning methods, are utilized for secondary structure prediction (Faraji et al. 2022). Understanding peptide-protein, peptide-membrane, and peptide-DNA interactions, folding from the sequence, and estimating their probable function requires the prediction of peptide secondary structure (John et al. 2019; Matveev, Safronov, and Kazanov 2021).

In bioinformatics, secondary structure prediction algorithms are commonly used to predict the secondary structure of proteins. Self-optimize prediction method (SOPMA), Porter tool, GOR4, SOPM, SOPMA 29, Secondary Structural Content Prediction (SSCP method-I) server, and Mfold web server are some regularly used tools. PSIPRED is regarded the best technique for predicting secondary structures. Additionally, PEP-FOLD is a cutting-edge online computational system for predicting the secondary structure of proteins and peptides (Lamiable et al. 2016).

PEP-FOLD is a tool that is used to predict the three-dimensional structure of peptides and small proteins based on their amino acid sequences. The program employs an algorithm based on the notion of de novo protein folding, which includes predicting the shape of a peptide or protein that is most energetically advantageous. PEPFOLD predicts the structures of peptides and small proteins using a mix of lattice-based and ab initio approaches. The PEPFOLD method is based on the notion of energy minimization, which entails locating the shape of a peptide or protein with the least amount of energy. The program samples the conformational space of the peptide or protein using a Monte Carlo simulation and identifies the most energetically acceptable configuration. In addition, the algorithm uses a knowledge-based technique that combines information from known protein structures to increase the accuracy of its predictions.

In this section, HABP1 and antimicrobial peptides are modeled using the PEPFOLD online platform. In addition, the chimeric peptides created by combining of these peptides, were modeled and their structural changes relative to the originals were investigated. RMSD analysis was done to determine the conformational change, and the findings were analyzed.

2.4 Solubility Prediction of Peptides

Peptide solubility can be affected by peptide sequence, length, conformation stability, and environmental conditions such as temperature, pH, and ionic strength. The secondary structure of a peptide can influence its tendency to aggregate. Researchers discovered that peptides with a significant propensity to form α -helical secondary

structure were more likely to assemble into amyloid fibrils than unstructured or "random coil" peptides (John et al. 2019).

Peptide solubility has been extensively studied using computational techniques. Hydrophilicity refers to a peptide's capacity to interact with water molecules, whereas aggregation propensity refers to a peptide's inclination to form aggregates or amyloid fibrils. Various computer techniques, including TANGO, AGGRESCAN, FoldAmyloid, AMYLPRED, and CamSol, have been developed to predict the solubility of peptides (Aronica et al. 2021). These algorithms anticipate the tendency of a peptide to form amyloid fibrils based on a variety of factors, including the amino acid sequence, the secondary structure, and the solvent accessibility. CamSol is a computer approach used to estimate the solubility of proteins and peptides based on their sequence information. CamSol predicts solubility changes resulting from mutations and incorporates the contribution of various physicochemical properties, such as hydrophobicity, structural propensities, and electrostatics, at the level of individual residues considered within local motifs and in the context of the entire sequence (Oeller et al. 2023).

CamSol provides both Intrinsic and Structurally Corrected solubility analyses (Figure 8). CamSol Intrinsic analysis utilizes simply the amino acid sequence of the peptide, however Structurally Corrected analysis employs the secondary structure of the peptide. In the intrinsic concept, it only analyzes at a radius of seven amino acid window, while the Structurally Corrected concept providing the relationship of amino acids in the desired radius. Each concept provides a value for each residue as a result of the analysis. These values are classified as 1 or more hydrophilic, 0 to 1 hydrophilic tendency, 0 to -1 hydrophobic tendency, and -1 or less hydrophilic.

The radius value for each peptide was calculated based on the 3.8-angstrom value between the two alpha carbons in order to make the structurally corrected method suitable for our study. Then, a limit was determined by examining just AMPs to identify what the range should be when AMPs are evaluated in their chimeric form. After determining the limit, chimeric peptides were examined based on this limit, and the best candidates were identified.



Figure 8. CamSol Intrinsic Concept and CamSol Structurally Corrected Concept.

2.5 Molecular Dynamics Simulation of Peptides

Molecular dynamics simulations (MD) are a powerful tool for studying the behavior of molecules and materials at the atomic level. MD simulations involve solving the equations of motion for a system of interacting particles, typically using classical mechanics.

The fundamental principle that underlies a molecular dynamics (MD) simulation is relatively simple. It is feasible to determine the forces exerted on individual atoms within a biomolecular system, such as a peptide/protein immersed in water and potentially enclosed by a lipid bilayer, by utilizing the coordinates of all the atoms involved (Badar et al. 2022). By employing Newton's equations of motion, molecular dynamics (MD) is capable of estimating the temporal variation in the spatial position of individual atoms. In the context of temporal progression, the advancement occurs by iteratively computing the forces exerted on individual atoms and subsequently employing these forces to modify the position and velocity of each atom (Adcock and McCammon 2006). The trajectory obtained can be described as a three-dimensional animation that visually represents the atomic-level arrangement of the system at various time points within the simulated time interval.

The simulations can be used to investigate a wide range of phenomena, including protein folding, functional dynamics in biomolecules, and protein-protein binding (Freddolino et al. 2010; Markwick and McCammon 2011; Sun et al. 2017). MD simulations are a valuable tool for studying peptides. They can provide information about the structure, dynamics, and interactions of peptides that cannot be obtained from other experimental methods. This information can be used to understand how peptides function in biological systems and to design new peptides with specific properties (Tsai et al. 2009).

In the light of this information, promising candidates from secondary structure analysis and solubility analysis, a water box was created using sodium chloride ions and water molecules to neutralize the medium (Figure 9). This created system has been simulated for 35 nanoseconds for each candidate. Depending on the time and considering the conformational change, the candidates were analyzed and the best candidates were decided.



Figure 9. An Example of Waterbox with a Peptide.

CHAPTER 3

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Here, in addition to the currently biocompatible implant coatings, a biomimetic coating design providing resistance to infection has been performed. In this context, in addition to the biocompatible hydroxyapatite-coated titanium implants, antimicrobial peptides were taken into consideration and chimeric peptides that could provide antimicrobial resistance were designed. Computationally, secondary structure analysis, solubility analysis, and conformational change analysis were performed to examine whether these formed chimeric peptides could preserve their antimicrobial properties. Conformational analyzes of promising candidates obtained from secondary structure and solubility analysis were also performed and the most suitable candidates were decided.

3.1. Peptide Selection and Chimerization

The following is a list of antimicrobial peptides that are effective against cariogenic bacteria and were chosen based on the literature and databases, taking into account the low MIC value. The table contains the sequence, MIC value, MW value, and pI values of the peptides (Table 3).

Number	Sequence	MIC Value		MW	рI	Source
AMP1	GLLWHLLHH LLH	S.mutans ATCC700610 GS-5 COCC32-3	4,5μM/L 5,3μM/L 2,6μM/L	1488.8	7.1	(Wang et al. 2017; W. Jiang et al. 2018; Afshar et al. 2021)
AMP2	KIFGAIWPLA LGALKNLIK	S.oralis S.sanguinis S.mutans S.sobrinus E.coli	7,5μM/L 7,5μM/L 60μM/L 7,5μM/L 32 μM/L	2066.6	10.3	(Da Silva et al. 2013)
AMP3	WKLLRKAWK LLRKA	S.mutans S.salivarius S.sobrinus	8.00μM/L 16.00μM/L 32.00 μM/L	1810.3	12.0	(Luo et al. 2021)
AMP4	GKLIWKLLRK AWKLLRKA	S.mutans S.salivarius S.sobrinus 1	16.00μM/L 11.20μM/L 6.00 μM/L	2221.8	12.0	(Luo et al. 2021)
AMP5	KKVVFKVKF K	S.mutans 0.06 S.sobrinus 0. S.sanguinis S.gordonii	525 mg/mL 125mg/mL 0,1μM/L 0,3μM/L	1250.6	10.6	(Liu et al. 2011)
AMP6	KNLRIIRKGIH IIKKY	S. mutans UA159 12. 25175 14.	$1\pm4.5~\mu M$ $8\pm2.0~\mu M$	1993.5	11.2	(Kaplan et al. 2011)
AMP7	FKIGGFIKKL WRSLLA	S.mutans S.sobrinus S.gordonii P.gingivalis	8-16μΜ 8μΜ 8-16μΜ 16μΜ	1877.3	11.2	(Chen et al. 2017)
AMP8	RIWVIWRR	S.mutans S.sanguinis S.sobrinus	16μg/mL 16μg/mL 16μg/mL	1184.4	12.3	(Ding et al. 2014)
AMP9	IKKILSKIKKL LK	C.albicans S.mutans S.salivarius S.sanguinis	6.25μM 3.13μM 6.25μM 6.25μM	1553.0	10.7	(Shang et al. 2014)
AMP10	LRWWLWKLL RRMR	S. Mutans ATCC25175 S. Sobrinus ATCC33478 S. Gordonii ATCC10558 P. gingivalis	3.3µM 3.3µM 3.3µM 3.3 µM	1913.4	12.4	(Liang et al. 2019)
AMP11	LKLLKKLLKL LKKL	S.epidermidis E.coli S.mutans	1 μg/mL 32 μg/mL 16 μg/mL	1692.3	10.7	(Yucesoy et al. 2015; Yazici et al. 2016)
AMP12	KWKRWWW WR	S.epidermidis E.coli S.mutans	8 μg/mL 16 μg/mL 64 μg/mL	1517.8	12.0	(Yucesoy et al. 2015; Afshar et al. 2021)

Table 3. List of Antimicrobial Peptides Effective to Cariogenic Bacteria

Considering the aim of the thesis, cariogenic peptides effective on microorganisms such as S. Mutans and S. epidermidis, which are prominent in implant infection, were investigated. In this context, peptides were selected considering the strains they act on, low MIC values and sequence length. Tests with a low MIC value give the value in which a small amount of peptide shows the highest effect. Because of their low cost and easy synthesis, peptides with short sequence lengths came into prominence.

As a result of the chimerization of hydroxyapatite binding peptide and each antimicrobial peptides 24 chimeric peptide obtained.

3.2. Secondary Structure Prediction

Secondary structure analysis was performed to analyze whether AMPs and HABP1-generated chimeric peptides (Straight and Reverse) could retain their original structure (Figure 10). The structural change was quantified by separately aligning the two portions of the chimeric peptide with the peptides' original states. AMP2, AMP5, AMP6, AMP7, AMP8, and AMP12 were unable to maintain their original structures in chimeric form, whereas AMP1, AMP3, AMP4, AMP9, AMP10, and AMP11 predominantly maintained their original structures (Figure 10 A,B).



Figure 10. Investigation of whether the structural change is preserved in the chimeric structure by comparing the antimicrobial parts of chimeric peptides with the models in which the peptide is alone A) Root mean square deviation data of antimicrobial peptides B) Average data of root mean square deviation analysis of antimicrobial peptides

In the Secondary structure analysis for HABP1, the structural change was quantified by aligning the HABP1 portion of the chimeric peptide with its native form.

As a consequence of the analysis, the arithmetic mean of the values and the rate of change were calculated (Figure 11). All chimeric peptides exhibited comparable rates of change in HABP1 peptide, based on the average data (Figure 11A). Considering the AMP and HABP1 analyses, intriguing candidates were identified by examining the AMP

changes. As a consequence of the analysis, promising candidates AMP1, AMP9, and AMP11 were identified (Figure 11B).



Figure 11. Investigation of whether the structural change is preserved in the chimeric structure by comparing the hydroxyapatite binding parts of chimeric peptides with the models in which the peptide is alone A) Root mean square deviation data of antimicrobial peptides B) Average data of root mean square deviation analysis of antimicrobial peptides

In terms of this study, tools for predicting the secondary structure of peptides offer numerous benefits. By predicting the secondary structures of peptides, we can obtain insight into their functional mechanisms. Predicting peptide secondary structures is also an important intermediate step in predicting 3D or tertiary structures, which, along with the secondary structure, are crucial determinants of peptide bioactivity (Y. Jiang et al. 2023). In addition, these tools are open access and fast results systems. Peptide secondary structure prediction can be used to predict novel peptide secondary structures if the models attain a robust and promising performance as we do. In this study, we used the PEPFOLD tool, since it focused specifically on peptides, but there are many tools that make predictions (Aronica et al. 2021). In order to analyze the structural change, secondary structures, and RMSD values were considered. RMSD (root mean square deviation) quantifies the distance between two coordinate systems. RMSD is frequently used to compare the structures of two distinct peptides or the structure of a peptide to a theoretical model in the context of peptides. To calculate RMSD, all atom coordinates in one peptide are compared to all-atom coordinates in the other peptide. The squared distances between each pair of elements are then averaged. The RMSD is the square root of this average. A smaller RMSD indicates that the two peptide structures are more similar. A RMSD of zero would indicate that the structures of the two peptides are identical. RMSD is a potent instrument for analyzing peptides, but it should be noted that it is not an ideal measure of similarity. Several factors can influence the RMSD between two peptides, including the length of the peptides, the number of amino acid substitutions, and the prevalence of disordered regions.

3.3. Solubility Prediction

In the solubility analysis, the sequence of each chimeric peptide was analyzed. Prior to determining whether or not the chimeric peptides are suitable, standards were established. In order to provide these standards, the lower limit and optimal range of solubility for each AMP were determined by conducting a solubility analysis (Figure 12).



Figure 12. Determination of Solubility Limit and Range for Chimeric Peptides

While the minimum threshold was set at -3, the optimal range was defined as -3 and above. After analyzing the chimeric peptides in light of these standards, intriguing candidates were identified. Although straight and reverse AMP1 chimeric peptides are at the lower limit, chimeric structures have been identified as promising candidates since AMP1 is known to be highly effective in the literature (Figure 13). In the analysis of the chimeric forms of AMP9 and AMP11, the values were found to be above the limit and the ideal range (Figure 14, 15). Consequently, candidates for secondary structure analysis also demonstrated significant solubility results.



Figure 13. Solubility analysis of Chimeric AMP1 Peptides A) Straight Chimeric Peptide Solubility Scores B) Reverse Chimeric Peptide Solubility Scores



Figure 14. Solubility analysis of Chimeric AMP9 Peptides A) Straight Chimeric Peptide Solubility Scores B) Reverse Chimeric Peptide Solubility Scores



Figure 15. Solubility analysis of Chimeric AMP11 Peptides A) Straight Chimeric Peptide Solubility Scores B) Reverse Chimeric Peptide Solubility Scores

When the implants are coated with the peptide, they are covered by the solution dipping technique, so they must be soluble. In addition, peptides can lose their properties by entering hydrophobic-hydrophobic interactions when they are extremely hydrophobic. In particular, antimicrobial peptides have amphipathic properties and provide their antimicrobial effects depending on this property.

MD simulations are a standard for predicting conformational behaviour. With these simulations, linear secondary structures of single AMP1, AMP9, AMP11 and chimeric candidates were formed. Afterwards, a waterbox was created using water molecules and ions with the peptides in the center. The addition of ions here is to neutralize the medium. Finally, simulations of 35 ns were performed.

3.4. Conformational Analysis of Designed Peptides

For conformational analysis, simulations of promising candidates from secondary structure/solubility analysis were conducted using molecular dynamics. For 35 nanoseconds, simulations were conducted for every single and chimeric peptide (Figure 16, 18, 20). After that, secondary structure models were determined as the RMSD score of the single peptides, i.e., from the highest conformational change sites. Using these reference models as reference points for simulations of chimeric peptides, a similarity analysis was conducted. As a consequence of this analysis, chimeric peptides were analyzed by examining the time-dependent stability of regions with a low RMSD score, i.e. regions that undergo similar conformational change. Aligning the stability and similarity simulations with secondary structures from the stable region confirmed the analysis. The secondary structures collected in the average region were aligned and the analysis was completed for the unstable candidates.



Figure 16. AMP1 Molecular Dynamics Simulation at 35ns to Identify Reference Models for AMP1 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis.

When the linear AMP1 chimeric peptide was analyzed, a stable region of approximately 20 nanoseconds was observed. The secondary structures selected from a single AMP1 simulation nearly matched the secondary structures from the stable region (Figure 17A). Analyzing the reverse AMP1 chimeric peptide for 35 nanoseconds revealed no stability. Due to the absence of a stable region, conformational analysis was conducted by aligning the secondary structure of the average region with the secondary structure of a single AMP1 simulation. The analysis revealed that the secondary structure of the reverse AMP1 chimeric peptide simulation did not match that of the single AMP1 simulation (Figure 17B).



Figure 17. AMP1 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis with Reference Models A) Linear Straight AMP1 Analysis B) Linear Reverse AMP1 Analysis

The same analyses were conducted on both the straight and reverse AMP9 chimeric peptides (Figure 18). The simulation of a straight AMP9 chimeric peptide revealed a stability of approximately 4 nanoseconds. By aligning the secondary structure of the stable region with the models from a single AMP9 simulation, structural similarity was analyzed (Figure 19A). As a consequence of the analysis, it was determined that the structural similarity was almost matching, but that it was not stable. Analyzing the reverse AMP9 chimeric peptide revealed a stability of approximately 12 nanoseconds. Aligning the secondary structure from the stable region and the secondary structure from a single AMP9 simulation revealed that the structures were comparable (Figure 19B).



Figure 18. AMP9 Molecular Dynamics Simulation at 35ns to Identify Reference Models for AMP9 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis.



Figure 19. AMP9 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis with Reference Models A) Linear Straight AMP9 Analysis B) Linear Reverse AMP9 Analysis

Finally, straight and reverse AMP11 chimeric peptides were analyzed (Figure 20). The simulation of the straight AMP11 chimeric peptide revealed no stability. By aligning the secondary structure of the average region with the models from a single AMP11 simulation, structural similarity was analyzed. As a consequence of the analysis, it was determined that the structural similarity was not stable, despite being nearly concordant (Figure 21A). The stability of the reverse AMP11 chimeric peptide was not the same as that of the straight chimeric peptide (Figure 21B). When the secondary structure of the average region and the secondary structure from a single AMP11 simulation were aligned, it was discovered that the structures were similar, but unstable.



Figure 20. AMP11 Molecular Dynamics Simulation at 35ns to Identify Reference Models for AMP11 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis.



Figure 21. AMP11 Chimeric Peptides Simulation Analysis with Reference Models A) Linear Straight AMP11 Analysis B) Linear Reverse AMP11 Analysis

Consequently, conformational and stability analyses were conducted on all candidate chimeric peptides. Straight AMP1 chimeric peptide showed the greatest results in the analysis. Straight and reverse AMP9 chimeric peptides have good conformation similarity, but their stability is limited. Therefore, these candidates have been determined to be promising candidates. Reverse AMP1, straight AMP11, and reverse AMP11 chimeric peptides failed to demonstrate stability and were therefore ruled out as unsuitable candidates.

CHAPTER 4

CONCLUSION

Implants are considered one of the most effective alternatives for replacing missing teeth. Implants offer benefits such as their mechanical properties, natural appearance, and long-term functionality, which make them highly desirable. However, a significant challenge associated with implants is the colonization of microorganisms on their surfaces, leading to infection issues. This basic problem with implants can be eliminated, making it a much better option. Infection-resistant antimicrobial coatings developed for this have become a promising option. In this study, functional chimeric peptides were designed using antimicrobial peptides and hydroxyapatite binding peptide to provide antimicrobial effect to titanium dental implants with increased biocompatibility by coating with hydroxyapatite. For this purpose, 12 antimicrobial peptides were selected from various databases and literature. Computational secondary structure analysis, solubility analysis and conformational change analysis were performed to analyze whether the designed chimeric peptides could retain their antimicrobial properties.

Antimicrobial peptides appear as thousands of alternatives known to be effective against microorganisms such as viruses, fungi and bacteria in general. However, considering the aim of the thesis, cariogenic peptides effective on microorganisms such as *S. Mutans* and *S. Epidermidis*, which are prominent in implant infection, were investigated. In this context, the peptides were selected considering the strains, low MIC values and sequence length. Peptides with short sequence lengths have come to the prominence due to their low cost and easy synthesis.

In the secondary structure analysis, AMPs and HABP peptides were modeled separately by secondary structure prediction. The PEPFOLD online tool, which is Open Access, was used for the prediction. The reason for using PEPFOLD is that algorithms have been developed focusing on peptides and it gives rapid results. Although there are many alternative platforms to PEPFOLD, they have not been a proper option due to minimum sequence and maximum sequence restrictions. Secondary structure analysis was performed for AMPs with the result of RMSD by atomic alignment of the AMP side of the chimeric peptide with the single form of AMPs. For the HABP peptide, the HABP side of the chimeric peptide and the RMSD result were analyzed. It is known that for cases where the RMSD score is close to 1, the structural change is less, and the further this score is away from 1, the more the structural change differs. In this context, as a result of the analysis of AMPs, it was observed that the structural change was the least in AMP1, AMP9 and AMP11 chimeric peptides. These chimeric peptides have been identified as promising candidates for further analysis.

As a result of secondary structure analysis, AMP1 AMP9 and AMP11 chimeric peptides were subjected to solubility analysis as promising candidates. The reason for this is that peptides can lose their properties by entering hydrophobic-hydrophobic interactions when they are extremely hydrophobic. In particular, antimicrobial peptides have amphipathic properties and provide their antimicrobial effects depending on this property. The structurally corrected method of CAMSOL, the Open Access tool, was used for solubility analysis. In the structurally corrected method, the ideal diameter value was given for each peptide based on the distance between two alpha C atoms, and the proximity-distance relationship of amino acids and the solubility score for each amino acid were calculated. In order to evaluate the results, a score of 1 and above was associated with hydrophilic, a range of 0 to 1 with hydrophilic affinity, a range of 0 to -1 with hydrophobicity, and a score of -1 or lower with hydrophobicity. In the solubility analysis, the lower limit and ideal range for the appropriate hydrophobicity were determined. In order to do this, solubility analysis of 12 antimicrobial peptide candidates was performed. In the analysis, -3 was determined as the lower limit, while the ideal range was determined as 3 to -3. Subsequently, the analysis of straight and reverse chimeric peptides AMP1, AMP9 and AMP11 was performed. Although the AMP1 chimeric peptide was seen in limit, it was observed that it shifted to hydrophilicity compared to single AMP1. In addition, AMP1 was identified as a promising candidate as it is known to be one of the most effective peptides in the literature. When straight and reverse AMP9 chimeric peptides were analyzed, it was found to be in the ideal range. Finally, analysis of straight and reverse AMP11 chimeric peptides showed that both were in the ideal range, as with AMP9 chimeric peptides. As a result, all analyzed chimeric peptides were identified as promising candidates as a result of solubility analysis.

Molecular Dynamics simulations were performed to analyze the time-dependent conformational changes of AMP1, AMP9 and AMP11 chimeric peptides from secondary structure analysis and solubility analysis. For this analysis, conventional molecular dynamics simulation was used. As an alternative to conventional MD, accelerated MD or all atom MD simulations can also be performed. For MD simulations, linear secondary structures of single AMP1, AMP9, AMP11 and chimeric candidates were constructed. Afterwards, a waterbox was created using water molecules and ions with the peptides in the center. Here, the addition of ions is to ensure that the medium is neutralized. Finally, simulations of 35 ns were performed. In the simulation of single antimicrobial peptides, the highest points were determined as the reference point for chimeric simulations of the models at that point, assuming the highest conformational change. Then, the distance from the starting point and stability of the lowest points were examined in the chimeric simulation analysis. Stability of approximately 20 ns was seen for the straight AMP1 chimeric peptide. For the reverse AMP1 chimeric peptide, it was observed that it progressed at the starting point, that is, it did not undergo conformational change. Although a stability of about 4 ns was observed for the straight AMP9 peptide, there was a rapid return to the starting point, that is, to the point where there was no conformational change. For reverse AMP9 chimeric peptide result showed almost 12 ns stability and structural similarity by lower scores from starting point. Finally, there was no stability and any structural similarity from starting point to final point for the straight and reverse AMP11 simulation results. As a result of the conformational analysis of chimeric peptide candidates, straight AMP1, straight AMP9 and reverse AMP9 were determined as the best candidates.

In conclusion, the design platform outlined in this work can be expanded further with other antimicrobial peptides. This approach will eliminate the need for the test processes used in determining effective chimeric peptides, thus reducing both time and cost associated with the chimeric peptide determination process. Once fully developed, the chimeric peptide design tool described in this thesis can be employed to rapidly design bifunctional peptides for infection-resistant implant coatings.

REFERENCES

- Adcock, Stewart A., and J. Andrew McCammon. 2006. "Molecular Dynamics: Survey of Methods for Simulating the Activity of Proteins." *Chemical Reviews* 106 (5): 1589–1615.
 https://doi.org/10.1021/CR040426M/ASSET/IMAGES/LARGE/CR040426MF000 02.JPEG.
- Afshar, Ayda, Esra Yuca, Cate Wisdom, Hussain Alenezi, Jubair Ahmed, Candan Tamerler, and Mohan Edirisinghe. 2021. "Next-Generation Antimicrobial Peptides (AMPs) Incorporated Nanofibre Wound Dressings." *Medical Devices & Sensors* 4 (1). John Wiley & Sons, Ltd: e10144. doi:10.1002/MDS3.10144.
- Akça, Kıvanç, Atılım Eser, Yeliz Çavuşoğlu, Elçin Sağırkaya, and Murat Cavit Çehreli.
 2015. "Numerical Assessment of Bone Remodeling around Conventionally and Early Loaded Titanium and Titanium–Zirconium Alloy Dental Implants." *Medical and Biological Engineering and Computing* 53 (5): 453–62. https://doi.org/10.1007/S11517-015-1256-0/FIGURES/5.
- Åkerfeldt, Pia, Marta Lena Antti, and Robert Pederson. 2016. "Influence of Microstructure on Mechanical Properties of Laser Metal Wire-Deposited Ti-6Al-4V." *Materials Science and Engineering: A* 674 (September): 428–37. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.MSEA.2016.07.038.
- Ali Altay, Mehmet, Alper Sindel, Öznur Özalp, Nelli Yıldırımyan, and Burak Kocabalkan. 2019. "Proton Pump Inhibitor Intake Negatively Affects the Osseointegration of Dental Implants: A Retrospective Study." https://doi.org/10.5125/jkaoms.2019.45.3.135.
- Almehmadi, Ahmad H. 2019. "Awareness of Population Regarding the Effects of Diabetes on Dental Implant Treatment in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia." *Heliyon* 5 (9): e02407. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.heliyon.2019.e02407.
- Alvim-Pereira, Fabino, Claudia C Montes, Marcelo T Mira, and Paula C Trevilatto.
 2008. "Genetic Susceptibility to Dental Implant Failure: A Critical Review."
 International Journal of Oral & Maxillofacial Implants 23 (3).
- Amadori, Francesca, Elena Bardellini, Alessandro Copeta, Giulio Conti, Valerio Villa, and Alessandra Majorana. 2017. "Dental Trauma and Bicycle Safety: A Report in

Italian Children and Adolescents." *Acta Odontologica Scandinavica* 75 (3): 227–31. https://doi.org/10.1080/00016357.2017.1279345.

- Amengual-Peñafiel, Luis, Luis A. Córdova, M. Constanza Jara-Sepúlveda, Manuel Brañes-Aroca, Francisco Marchesani-Carrasco, and Ricardo Cartes-Velásquez.
 2021. "Osteoimmunology Drives Dental Implant Osseointegration: A New Paradigm for Implant Dentistry." *Japanese Dental Science Review* 57 (November): 12–19. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.JDSR.2021.01.001.
- Arciola, Carla Renata, Davide Campoccia, and Lucio Montanaro. 2018. "Implant Infections: Adhesion, Biofilm Formation and Immune Evasion." *Nature Reviews Microbiology 2018 16:7* 16 (7): 397–409. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41579-018-0019-y.
- Arima, Yusuke, and Hiroo Iwata. 2007. "Effect of Wettability and Surface Functional Groups on Protein Adsorption and Cell Adhesion Using Well-Defined Mixed Self-Assembled Monolayers." *Biomaterials* 28 (20): 3074–82. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.BIOMATERIALS.2007.03.013.
- Aronica, Pietro G A, Lauren M Reid, Nirali Desai, Jianguo Li, Stephen J Fox, Shilpa Yadahalli, Jonathan W Essex, and Chandra S Verma. 2021. "Computational Methods and Tools in Antimicrobial Peptide Research." https://doi.org/10.1021/acs.jcim.1c00175.
- Arx, Thomas Von, Scott Lozanoff, Pedram Sendi, and Michael M. Bornstein. 2013.
 "Assessment of Bone Channels Other than the Nasopalatine Canal in the Anterior Maxilla Using Limited Cone Beam Computed Tomography." *Surgical and Radiologic Anatomy* 35 (9): 783–90. https://doi.org/10.1007/S00276-013-1110-8/FIGURES/4.
- Badar, Mohammad Sufian, Shazmeen Shamsi, Jawed Ahmed, and Md. Afshar Alam. 2022. "Molecular Dynamics Simulations: Concept, Methods, and Applications," 131–51. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-94651-7 7.
- Baseri, Milad, Faraz Radmand, Reyhaneh Hamedi, Mehdi Yousefi, and Hossein Samadi Kafil. 2020. "Immunological Aspects of Dental Implant Rejection." doi:10.1155/2020/7279509.
- Bassir, Seyed Hossein, Karim El Kholy, Chia Yu Chen, Kyu Ha Lee, and Giuseppe Intini. 2019. "Outcome of Early Dental Implant Placement versus Other Dental

Implant Placement Protocols: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis." *Journal of Periodontology* 90 (5): 493–506. https://doi.org/10.1002/JPER.18-0338.

- Beck, Sascha, Carolin Sehl, Sylvia Voortmann, Hedda Luise Verhasselt, Michael J.
 Edwards, Jan Buer, Mike Hasenberg, Erich Gulbins, and Katrin Anne Becker.
 2020. "Sphingosine Is Able to Prevent and Eliminate Staphylococcus Epidermidis
 Biofilm Formation on Different Orthopedic Implant Materials in Vitro." *Journal of Molecular Medicine* 98 (2): 209–19. https://doi.org/10.1007/S00109-019-01858-X/FIGURES/10.
- Benfield, Aurélie H., and Sónia Troeira Henriques. 2020. "Mode-of-Action of Antimicrobial Peptides: Membrane Disruption vs. Intracellular Mechanisms." *Frontiers in Medical Technology* 2 (December): 20. https://doi.org/10.3389/FMEDT.2020.610997.
- B.Eswaran, Rathika Rai, Suprabha Rathee, Babina Chirom, Menaga.V. 2014.
 "Aesthetic Essentiality Regained Using Implant-A Case Report." *Journal of Clinical and Diagnostic Research* 8. https://doi.org/10.7860/JCDR/2014/9228.4653.
- Bilhan, H., O. Geckili, E. Mumcu, E. Bozdag, E. Sünbüloğlu, and O. Kutay. 2010.
 "Influence of Surgical Technique, Implant Shape and Diameter on the Primary Stability in Cancellous Bone." *Journal of Oral Rehabilitation* 37 (12): 900–907. https://doi.org/10.1111/J.1365-2842.2010.02117.X.
- Blair, Jessica M.A., Mark A. Webber, Alison J. Baylay, David O. Ogbolu, and Laura J.V. Piddock. 2014. "Molecular Mechanisms of Antibiotic Resistance." *Nature Reviews Microbiology 2014 13:1* 13 (1): 42–51. https://doi.org/10.1038/nrmicro3380.
- Bonsignore, Lindsay A., J. Robert Anderson, Zhenghong Lee, Victor M. Goldberg, and Edward M. Greenfield. 2013. "Adherent Lipopolysaccharide Inhibits the Osseointegration of Orthopedic Implants by Impairing Osteoblast Differentiation." *Bone* 52 (1): 93–101. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.BONE.2012.09.011.
- Bonsignore, Lindsay A., Robb W. Colbrunn, Joscelyn M. Tatro, Patrick J.
 Messerschmitt, Christopher J. Hernandez, Victor M. Goldberg, Matthew C.
 Stewart, and Edward M. Greenfield. 2011. "Surface Contaminants Inhibit
 Osseointegration in a Novel Murine Model." *Bone* 49 (5): 923–30.
 https://doi.org/10.1016/J.BONE.2011.07.013.

- Borba, Marcelo, Daniel Deluiz, Eduardo José Veras Lourenço, Luciano Oliveira, and Patrícia Nivoloni Tannure. 2017. "Risk Factors for Implant Failure: A Retrospective Study in an Educational Institution Using GEE Analyses." *Brazilian Oral Research* 31 (August): e69. https://doi.org/10.1590/1807-3107BOR-2017.VOL31.0069.
- Bosshardt, Dieter D, Vivianne Chappuis, and Daniel Buser. 2016. "Osseointegration of Titanium, Titanium Alloy and Zirconia Dental Implants: Current Knowledge and Open Questions." https://doi.org/10.1111/prd.12179.
- Braem, Annabel, Lieve Van Mellaert, Tina Mattheys, Dorien Hofmans, Evelien De Waelheyns, Liesbet Geris, Jozef Anné, Jan Schrooten, and Jef Vleugels. 2014.
 "Staphylococcal Biofilm Growth on Smooth and Porous Titanium Coatings for Biomedical Applications." *Journal of Biomedical Materials Research Part A* 102 (1): 215–24. https://doi.org/10.1002/JBM.A.34688.
- Braly, B. v., and E. H. Maxwell. 1981. "Potential for Tooth Fracture in Restorative Dentistry." *The Journal of Prosthetic Dentistry* 45 (4): 411–14. https://doi.org/10.1016/0022-3913(81)90102-5.
- Branzoi, Ioan Viorel, Mihai Iordoc, and Mirela Codescu. 2008. "Electrochemical Studies on the Stability and Corrosion Resistance of New Zirconium-Based Alloys for Biomedical Applications." *Surface and Interface Analysis* 40 (3–4): 167–73. https://doi.org/10.1002/SIA.2750.
- Brunner, Flavio, Gabriel Krastl, and Andreas Filippi. 2009. "Dental Trauma in Adults in Switzerland." *Dental Traumatology* 25 (2): 181–84. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1600-9657.2008.00752.x.
- Büchter, André, Johannes Kleinheinz, Hans Peter Wiesmann, Jan Kersken, Manuel Nienkemper, Hendrik Von Weyhrother, Ulrich Joos, and Ulrich Meyer. 2005.
 "Biological and Biomechanical Evaluation of Bone Remodelling and Implant Stability after Using an Osteotome Technique." *Clinical Oral Implants Research* 16 (1): 1–8. https://doi.org/10.1111/J.1600-0501.2004.01081.X.
- Burns, Norman L, M Van Alstine, and J Milton Harris. 1995. "Poly(Ethylene Glycol) Grafted to Quartz: Analysis in Terms of a Site-Dissociation Model of Electroosmotic Fluid Flow." *Langmuir* 11: 2768–76. https://pubs.acs.org/sharingguidelines.

- Campbell, Stephen D., Lyndon Cooper, Helen Craddock, T. Paul Hyde, Brian Nattress, Sue H. Pavitt, and David W. Seymour. 2017. "Removable Partial Dentures: The Clinical Need for Innovation." *The Journal of Prosthetic Dentistry* 118 (3): 273– 80. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.PROSDENT.2017.01.008.
- Canullo, Luigi, David Peñarrocha-Oltra, Ugo Covani, Daniele Botticelli, Giovanni Serino, and Miguel Penarrocha. 2016. "Clinical and Microbiological Findings in Patients with Peri-Implantitis: A Cross-Sectional Study." *Clinical Oral Implants Research* 27 (3): 376–82. https://doi.org/10.1111/CLR.12557.
- Cardoso, Marlon H., Beatriz T. Meneguetti, Bruna O. Costa, Danieli F. Buccini, Karen G.N. Oshiro, Sergio L.E. Preza, Cristiano M.E. Carvalho, Ludovico Migliolo, and Octávio L. Franco. 2019. "Non-Lytic Antibacterial Peptides That Translocate Through Bacterial Membranes to Act on Intracellular Targets." *International Journal of Molecular Sciences 2019, Vol. 20, Page 4877* 20 (19): 4877. https://doi.org/10.3390/IJMS20194877.
- Chang, Po Chun, Niklaus P. Lang, and William V. Giannobile. 2010. "Evaluation of Functional Dynamics during Osseointegration and Regeneration Associated with Oral Implants." *Clinical Oral Implants Research* 21 (1): 1–12. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1600-0501.2009.01826.x.
- Chen, Hui, Nizhou Liu, Xinchen Xu, Xinhua Qu, and Eryi Lu. 2013. "Smoking, Radiotherapy, Diabetes and Osteoporosis as Risk Factors for Dental Implant Failure: A Meta-Analysis." *PLOS ONE* 8 (8): e71955. https://doi.org/10.1371/JOURNAL.PONE.0071955.
- Chen, Junjian, Yuchen Zhu, Menghua Xiong, Guansong Hu, Jiezhao Zhan, Tianjie Li, Lin Wang, and Yingjun Wang. 2019. "Antimicrobial Titanium Surface via Click-Immobilization of Peptide and Its in Vitro/Vivo Activity." ACS Biomaterials Science and Engineering 5 (2): 1034–44.
 https://doi.org/10.1021/ACSBIOMATERIALS.8B01046/SUPPL_FILE/AB8B010

46_SI_001.PDF.

Chen, Long, Lili Jia, Qiang Zhang, Xirui Zhou, Zhuqing Liu, Bingjie Li, Zhentai Zhu, et al. 2017. "A Novel Antimicrobial Peptide against Dental-Caries-Associated Bacteria." *Anaerobe* 47 (October). Academic Press: 165–72. doi:10.1016/J.ANAEROBE.2017.05.016.

- Chen, Shengfu, and Shaoyi Jiang. 2008. "An New Avenue to Nonfouling Materials." *Advanced Materials* 20 (2): 335–38. https://doi.org/10.1002/ADMA.200701164.
- Cheng, Gang, Hong Xue, Zheng Zhang, Shengfu Chen, Shaoyi Jiang, G Cheng, H Xue,
 Z Zhang, S Chen, and S Jiang. 2008. "A Switchable Biocompatible Polymer
 Surface with Self-Sterilizing and Nonfouling Capabilities." *Angewandte Chemie International Edition* 47 (46): 8831–34. https://doi.org/10.1002/ANIE.200803570.
- Choi, Soo-Hyoen, Yong-Seok Jang, Jong-Hwa Jang, Tae-Sung Bae, Sook-Jeong Lee, and Min-Ho Lee. n.d. "Enhanced Antibacterial Activity of Titanium by Surface Modification with Polydopamine and Silver for Dental Implant Application." Accessed March 3, 2023. https://doi.org/10.1177/2280800019847067.
- Chopra, Divya, Anjana Jayasree, Tianqi Guo, Karan Gulati, and Sašo Ivanovski. 2022.
 "Advancing Dental Implants: Bioactive and Therapeutic Modifications of Zirconia." *Bioactive Materials* 13 (July): 161–78. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.BIOACTMAT.2021.10.010.
- Choudhury, R., S. Panda, and D. V. Singh. 2012. "Emergence and Dissemination of Antibiotic Resistance: A Global Problem." *Indian Journal of Medical Microbiology* 30 (4): 384–90. https://doi.org/10.4103/0255-0857.103756.
- Chrcanovic, B. R., J. Kisch, T. Albrektsson, and A. Wennerberg. 2016. "Factors Influencing Early Dental Implant Failures." *Journal of Dental Research* 95 (9): 995–1002. https://doi.org/10.1177/0022034516646098.
- Clemente, Gennaro, Gerardo Sarno, Agostino Maria De Rose, Caterina Mele, Giuseppina Ranucci, and Gennaro Nuzzo. 2009. "Unexpected Diagnosis of Crohn's Disease after the Ingestion of a Dental Bridge." *Inflammatory Bowel Diseases* 15 (6): 812–13. https://doi.org/10.1002/IBD.20746.
- Coelho, Paulo G., Marcelo Suzuki, Charles Marin, Rodrigo Granato, Luis F. Gil, Nick Tovar, Ryo Jimbo, Rodrigo Neiva, and Estevam A. Bonfante. 2015.
 "Osseointegration of Plateau Root Form Implants: Unique Healing Pathway Leading to Haversian- like Long-Term Morphology." *Advances in Experimental Medicine and Biology* 881: 111–28. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-22345-2_7/COVER.
- Coli, Pierluigi, Véronique Christiaens, Lars Sennerby, and Hugo De Bruyn. 2017. "Reliability of Periodontal Diagnostic Tools for Monitoring Peri-Implant Health

and Disease." *Periodontology 2000* 73 (1): 203–17. https://doi.org/10.1111/PRD.12162.

- Cox, Sophie C., Parastoo Jamshidi, Neil M. Eisenstein, Mark A. Webber, Hanna Burton, Richard J.A. Moakes, Owen Addison, Moataz Attallah, Duncan E.T. Shepherd, and Liam M. Grover. 2017. "Surface Finish Has a Critical Influence on Biofilm Formation and Mammalian Cell Attachment to Additively Manufactured Prosthetics." *ACS Biomaterials Science and Engineering* 3 (8): 1616–26. https://doi.org/10.1021/ACSBIOMATERIALS.7B00336/ASSET/IMAGES/MEDI UM/AB-2017-00336H_0008.GIF.
- Dai, Jingjie, Jiyun Zhu, Chuanzhong Chen, and Fei Weng. 2016. "High Temperature Oxidation Behavior and Research Status of Modifications on Improving High Temperature Oxidation Resistance of Titanium Alloys and Titanium Aluminides: A Review." *Journal of Alloys and Compounds* 685 (November): 784–98. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.JALLCOM.2016.06.212.
- Deeb, George R., George Y. Soung, Al M. Best, and Daniel M. Laskin. 2015.
 "Antibiotic Prescribing Habits of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgeons in Conjunction With Routine Dental Implant Placement." *Journal of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery* 73 (10): 1926–31. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.JOMS.2015.05.024.
- Depprich, Rita, Holger Zipprich, Michelle Ommerborn, Eduardo Mahn, Lydia Lammers, Jörg Handschel, Christian Naujoks, Hans Peter Wiesmann, Norbert R. Kübler, and Ulrich Meyer. 2008. "Osseointegration of Zirconia Implants: An SEM Observation of the Bone-Implant Interface." *Head and Face Medicine* 4 (1): 1–7. https://doi.org/10.1186/1746-160X-4-25/FIGURES/7.
- Ding, Yonglin, Wei Wang, Meng Fan, Zhongchun Tong, Rong Kuang, Wenkai Jiang, and Longxing Ni. 2014. "Antimicrobial and Anti-Biofilm Effect of Bac8c on Major Bacteria Associated with Dental Caries and Streptococcus Mutans Biofilms." *Peptides* 52 (February). Elsevier: 61–67. doi:10.1016/J.PEPTIDES.2013.11.020.
- Duraccio, Donatella, Federico Mussano, and Maria Giulia Faga. 2015. "Biomaterials for Dental Implants: Current and Future Trends." *Journal of Materials Science* 50. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10853-015-9056-3.
- Duraccio, Donatella, Federico Mussano, and Maria Giulia Faga. 2015. "Biomaterials for Dental Implants: Current and Future Trends." *Journal of Materials Science*. Kluwer Academic Publishers. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10853-015-9056-3.
- East, B, M Podda, M Beznosková-Seydlová, and A C de Beaux. 2022. "P-106 CAN POOR ORAL HYGIENE BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MESH INFECTION FOLLOWING HERNIA REPAIR? A SYSTEMATIC REVIEW AND SUGGESTION FOR NEW PRACTICE." *British Journal of Surgery* 109 (Supplement 7). https://doi.org/10.1093/BJS/ZNAC308.204.
- Eichenberger, Emily M., and Joshua T. Thaden. 2019. "Epidemiology and Mechanisms of Resistance of Extensively Drug Resistant Gram-Negative Bacteria." *Antibiotics* 2019, Vol. 8, Page 37 8 (2): 37. https://doi.org/10.3390/ANTIBIOTICS8020037.
- Elias, Carlos Nelson, Daniel Jogaib Fernandes, Celso R.S. Resende, and Jochen
 Roestel. 2015. "Mechanical Properties, Surface Morphology and Stability of a
 Modified Commercially Pure High Strength Titanium Alloy for Dental Implants."
 Dental Materials 31 (2): e1–13. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.DENTAL.2014.10.002.
- Elwing, Hans, Stefan Welin, Agneta Askendahl, and Ingemar Lundström. 1988.
 "Adsorption of Fibrinogen as a Measure of the Distribution of Methyl Groups on Silicon Surfaces." *Journal of Colloid and Interface Science* 123 (1): 306–8. https://doi.org/10.1016/0021-9797(88)90249-4.
- Faraji, Naser, Seyed Shahriar Arab, Alireza Doustmohammadi, Norelle L. Daly, and Ahmad Yari Khosroushahi. 2022. "ApInAPDB: A Database of Apoptosis-Inducing Anticancer Peptides." *Scientific Reports 2022 12:1* 12 (1): 1–7. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-022-25530-6.
- Faucheux, N., R. Schweiss, K. Lützow, C. Werner, and T. Groth. 2004. "Self-Assembled Monolayers with Different Terminating Groups as Model Substrates for Cell Adhesion Studies." *Biomaterials* 25 (14): 2721–30. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.BIOMATERIALS.2003.09.069.
- Feller, Liviu, Yusuf Jadwat, Razia A.G. Khammissa, Robin Meyerov, Israel Schechter, and Johan Lemmer. 2015. "Cellular Responses Evoked by Different Surface Characteristics of Intraosseous Titanium Implants." *BioMed Research International* 2015. https://doi.org/10.1155/2015/171945.

- Fernández, Javier, Frédéric Bert, and Marie Hélène Nicolas-Chanoine. 2016. "The Challenges of Multi-Drug-Resistance in Hepatology." *Journal of Hepatology* 65 (5): 1043–54. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jhep.2016.08.006.
- Fischer, U., U. Hempel, D. Becker, S. Bierbaum, D. Scharnweber, H. Worch, and K. W. Wenzel. 2003. "Transforming Growth Factor B1 Immobilized Adsorptively on Ti6Al4V and Collagen Type I Coated Ti6Al4V Maintains Its Biological Activity." *Biomaterials* 24 (15): 2631–41. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0142-9612(03)00068-1.
- Forssten, Sofia D., Marika Björklund, and Arthur C. Ouwehand. 2010. "Streptococcus Mutans, Caries and Simulation Models." *Nutrients 2010, Vol. 2, Pages 290-298* 2 (3): 290–98. https://doi.org/10.3390/NU2030290.
- Fouda, Atef Abdel Hameed. 2020. "The Impact of the Alveolar Bone Sites on Early Implant Failure: A Systematic Review with Meta-Analysis." *Journal of the Korean Association of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgeons* 46 (3): 162–73. https://doi.org/10.5125/JKAOMS.2020.46.3.162.
- Franca, Juçara R., Mariana P. De Luca, Tatiana G. Ribeiro, Rachel O. Castilho, Allyson N. Moreira, Vagner R. Santos, and André A.G. Faraco. 2014. "Propolis - Based Chitosan Varnish: Drug Delivery, Controlled Release and Antimicrobial Activity against Oral Pathogen Bacteria." *BMC Complementary and Alternative Medicine* 14 (1): 1–11. https://doi.org/10.1186/1472-6882-14-478/FIGURES/3.
- Freddolino, Peter L., Christopher B. Harrison, Yanxin Liu, and Klaus Schulten. 2010.
 "Challenges in Protein-Folding Simulations." *Nature Physics 2010 6:10* 6 (10): 751–58. https://doi.org/10.1038/nphys1713.
- Gargallo-Albiol, Jordi, Shayan Barootchi, Oscar Salomó-Coll, and Hom-Lay Wang.
 2019. "Advantages and Disadvantages of Implant Navigation Surgery. A
 Systematic Review." *Annals of Anatomy* 225: 1–10.
 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aanat.2019.04.005.
- Gigandet, Michel, Gianni Bigolin, Francisco Faoro, Walter Bürgin, and Urs Brägger.
 2014. "Implants with Original and Non-Original Abutment Connections." *Clinical Implant Dentistry and Related Research* 16 (2): 303–11. https://doi.org/10.1111/J.1708-8208.2012.00479.X.
- Goutam, Manish, Chandu Giriyapura, Sunil Mishra, and Siddharth Gupta. 2014.
 "Titanium Allergy: A Literature Review." *Indian Journal of Dermatology* 59 (6): 630. https://doi.org/10.4103/0019-5154.143526.

- Guglielmotti, María B, Daniel G Olmedo, and Rómulo L Cabrini. 2019. "Research on Implants and Osseointegration." https://doi.org/10.1111/prd.12254.
- Guillaume, B. 2016. "Dental Implants: A Review." *Morphologie* 100 (331): 189–98. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.MORPHO.2016.02.002.
- Guo, Yumeng, Liangbo Xu, Weifeng Lin, and Shengfu Chen. 2021. "Development of Nonfouling Zwitterionic Copolymerized Peptides Based on Glutamic Acid and Lysine Dimers for Adjustable Enzymatic Degradation." *Langmuir* 37 (19): 5776– 82.

https://doi.org/10.1021/ACS.LANGMUIR.1C00021/ASSET/IMAGES/LARGE/L A1C00021 0005.JPEG.

- Harris, Michael A., Karen E. Beenken, Mark S. Smeltzer, Warren O. Haggard, and J. Amber Jennings. 2017. "Phosphatidylcholine Coatings Deliver Local Antimicrobials and Reduce Infection in a Murine Model: A Preliminary Study." *Clinical Orthopaedics and Related Research* 475 (7): 1847–53. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11999-016-5211-7.
- Hermida, Juan C., Arnie Bergula, Fred Dimaano, Monica Hawkins, Clifford W.
 Colwell, and Darryl D. D'Lima. 2010. "An in Vivo Evaluation of Bone Response to Three Implant Surfaces Using a Rabbit Intramedullary Rod Model." *Journal of Orthopaedic Surgery and Research* 5 (1): 1–8. https://doi.org/10.1186/1749-799X-5-57/FIGURES/6.
- Hetrick, Evan M., and Mark H. Schoenfisch. 2006. "Reducing Implant-Related Infections: Active Release Strategies." *Chemical Society Reviews* 35 (9): 780–89. https://doi.org/10.1039/B515219B.
- Hill, Tristan, Vijay Kumar Jain, and Karthikeyan P. Iyengar. 2022. "Antimicrobial Peptides (AMP) in Biofilm Induced Orthopaedic Device-Related Infections: Antimicrobial Peptides (AMP) in Orthopaedic Infection." *Journal of Clinical Orthopaedics and Trauma* 25 (February). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jcot.2022.101780.
- Höland, W., V. Rheinberger, E. Apel, C. Ritzberger, F. Rothbrust, H. Kappert, F.
 Krumeich, and R. Nesper. 2009. "Future Perspectives of Biomaterials for Dental Restoration." *Journal of the European Ceramic Society* 29 (7): 1291–97. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.JEURCERAMSOC.2008.08.023.

- Hoxha, Iris, Admir Malaj, and Ledjan Malaj. 2015. "Antibiotic Use in Albania between 2011 and 2012." *The Journal of Infection in Developing Countries* 9 (01): 094–098. https://doi.org/10.3855/jidc.5375.
- Ibbetson, Richard, Ken Hemmings, and Ian Harris. 2017. "Guidelines for Crowns, Fixed Bridges and Implants." *Https://Doi.Org/10.12968/Denu.2017.44.5.374* 44 (5): 374–86. https://doi.org/10.12968/DENU.2017.44.5.374.

Ishak, Mohd Irill, Marcus Eales, Laila Damiati, Xiayi Liu, Joshua Jenkins, Matthew J. Dalby, Angela H. Nobbs, Maxim G. Ryadnov, and Bo Su. 2022. "Enhanced and Stem-Cell-Compatible Effects of Nature-Inspired Antimicrobial Nanotopography and Antimicrobial Peptides to Combat Implant-Associated Infection." ACS Applied Nano Materials.

https://doi.org/10.1021/ACSANM.2C04913/ASSET/IMAGES/LARGE/AN2C049 13 0009.JPEG.

- Javed, Fawad, Khalid Almas, Roberto Crespi, and George E. Romanos. 2011. "Implant Surface Morphology and Primary Stability: Is There a Connection?" *Implant Dentistry* 20 (1): 40–46. https://doi.org/10.1097/ID.0B013E31820867DA.
- Jiang, Yi, Ruheng Wang, Jiuxin Feng, Junru Jin, Sirui Liang, Zhongshen Li, Yingying Yu, et al. 2023. "Explainable Deep Hypergraph Learning Modeling the Peptide Secondary Structure Prediction." *Advanced Science* 10 (11). John Wiley & Sons, Ltd: 2206151. doi:10.1002/ADVS.202206151.
- Jiang, Wentao, Yufei Wang, Junyuan Luo, Xinwei Li, Xuedong Zhou, Wei Li, and Linglin Zhang. 2018. "Effects of Antimicrobial Peptide GH12 on the Cariogenic Properties and Composition of a Cariogenic Multispecies Biofilm." *Applied and Environmental Microbiology* 84 (24). American Society for Microbiology: 1423– 41. doi:10.1128/AEM.01423-18/SUPPL_FILE/ZAM024188897S1.PDF.

John, Torsten, Tiara J.A. Dealey, Nicholas P. Gray, Nitin A. Patil, Mohammed A. Hossain, Bernd Abel, John A. Carver, Yuning Hong, and Lisandra L. Martin. 2019. "The Kinetics of Amyloid Fibrillar Aggregation of Uperin 3.5 Is Directed by the Peptide's Secondary Structure." *Biochemistry* 58 (35): 3656–68. https://doi.org/10.1021/ACS.BIOCHEM.9B00536/ASSET/IMAGES/LARGE/BI9 B00536 0008.JPEG.

Johnson, Christopher T., James A. Wroe, Rachit Agarwal, Karen E. Martin, Robert E. Guldberg, Rodney M. Donlan, Lars F. Westblade, and Andrés J. García. 2018.

"Hydrogel Delivery of Lysostaphin Eliminates Orthopedic Implant Infection by Staphylococcus Aureus and Supports Fracture Healing." *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of America* 115 (22): E4960– 69.

https://doi.org/10.1073/PNAS.1801013115/SUPPL_FILE/PNAS.1801013115.SAP P.PDF.

- Jørgensen, Nis Pedersen, Sandra M. Skovdal, Rikke L. Meyer, Frederik Dagnæs-Hansen, Kurt Fuursted, and Eskild Petersen. 2016. "Rifampicin-Containing Combinations Are Superior to Combinations of Vancomycin, Linezolid and Daptomycin against Staphylococcus Aureus Biofilm Infection in Vivo and in Vitro." *Pathogens and Disease* 74 (4): ftw019. https://doi.org/10.1093/FEMSPD/FTW019.
- Kaplan, Christopher W., Jee Hyun Sim, Kevin R. Shah, Aida Kolesnikova-Kaplan, Wenyuan Shi, and Randal Eckert. 2011. "Selective Membrane Disruption: Mode of Action of C16G2, a Specifically Targeted Antimicrobial Peptide." *Antimicrobial Agents and Chemotherapy* 55 (7). American Society for Microbiology 1752 N St., N.W., Washington, DC : 3446–52. doi:10.1128/AAC.00342-11/ASSET/B47202EE-DDD2-4CA4-9B88-

5671F8ADBE9E/ASSETS/GRAPHIC/ZAC9991000040005.JPEG.

- Karoussis, Ioannis K., Urs Brägger, Giovanni E. Salvi, Walter Bürgin, and Niklaus P. Lang. 2004. "Effect of Implant Design on Survival and Success Rates of Titanium Oral Implants: A 10-Year Prospective Cohort Study of the ITI® Dental Implant System." *Clinical Oral Implants Research* 15 (1): 8–17. https://doi.org/10.1111/J.1600-0501.2004.00983.X.
- Kate, Madhura Avinash, Sangeeta Palaskar, and Prakhar Kapoor. 2017. "Implant Failure: A Dentist's Nightmare." https://doi.org/10.4103/0974-6781.202154.
- Kaur, Gagandeep, Chao Wang, Jian Sun, and Qian Wang. 2010. "The Synergistic Effects of Multivalent Ligand Display and Nanotopography on Osteogenic Differentiation of Rat Bone Marrow Stem Cells." *Biomaterials* 31 (22): 5813–24. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.BIOMATERIALS.2010.04.017.
- Khang, Wahn, S. Feldman, C.E. Hawley, and J. Gunsolley. 2001. "A Multi-Center Study Comparing Dual Acid-Etched and Machined-Surfaced Implants in Various

Bone Qualities." *Journal of Periodontology* 72 (10): 1384–90. https://doi.org/10.1902/JOP.2001.72.10.1384.

- Khatayevich, Dmitriy, Mustafa Gungormus, Hilal Yazici, Christopher So, Sibel Cetinel, Hong Ma, Alex Jen, Candan Tamerler, and Mehmet Sarikaya. 2010.
 "Biofunctionalization of Materials for Implants Using Engineered Peptides." *Acta Biomaterialia* 6 (12): 4634–41. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.ACTBIO.2010.06.004.
- Kim, Kyeong Tae, Mi Young Eo, Truc Thi Hoang Nguyen, and Soung Min Kim. 2019.
 "General Review of Titanium Toxicity." *International Journal of Implant Dentistry 2019 5:1* 5 (1): 1–12. https://doi.org/10.1186/S40729-019-0162-X.
- Klokkevold, Perry R., Russell D. Nishimura, Moriyasu Adachi, and Angelo Caputo.
 1997. "Osseointegration Enhanced by Chemical Etching of the Titanium Surface.
 A Torque Removal Study in the Rabbit." *Clinical Oral Implants Research* 8 (6):
 442–47. https://doi.org/10.1034/J.1600-0501.1997.080601.X.
- Kniha, K., A. Bock, F. Peters, M. Heitzer, A. Modabber, H. Kniha, F. Hölzle, and S. C. Möhlhenrich. 2020. "Aesthetic Aspects of Adjacent Maxillary Single-Crown Implants—Influence of Zirconia and Titanium as Implant Materials." *International Journal of Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery* 49 (11): 1489–96. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.IJOM.2020.04.003.
- Kumar, Prashant, Jayachandran N. Kizhakkedathu, and Suzana K. Straus. 2018.
 "Antimicrobial Peptides: Diversity, Mechanism of Action and Strategies to Improve the Activity and Biocompatibility In Vivo." *Biomolecules 2018, Vol. 8, Page 4* 8 (1): 4. https://doi.org/10.3390/BIOM8010004.
- Ladd, Jon, Zheng Zhang, Shengfu Chen, Jason C. Hower, and Shaoyi Jiang. 2008.
 "Zwitterionic Polymers Exhibiting High Resistance to Nonspecific Protein Adsorption from Human Serum and Plasma." *Biomacromolecules* 9 (5): 1357–61. https://doi.org/10.1021/BM701301S/SUPPL FILE/BM701301S-FILE006.PDF.
- Lamiable, Alexis, Pierre Thevenet, Julien Rey, Marek Vavrusa, Philippe Derreumaux, and Pierre Tuffery. 2016. "PEP-FOLD3: Faster de Novo Structure Prediction for Linear Peptides in Solution and in Complex." *Nucleic Acids Research* 44 (Web Server issue): W449. https://doi.org/10.1093/NAR/GKW329.
- Larsen, Tove, and Nils Erik Fiehn. 2017. "Dental Biofilm Infections an Update." *APMIS* 125 (4): 376–84. https://doi.org/10.1111/APM.12688.

- Leng, Chuan, Hsiang Chieh Hung, Shuwen Sun, Dayang Wang, Yuting Li, Shaoyi
 Jiang, and Zhan Chen. 2015. "Probing the Surface Hydration of Nonfouling
 Zwitterionic and PEG Materials in Contact with Proteins." ACS Applied Materials
 and Interfaces 7 (30): 16881–88.
 https://doi.org/10.1021/ACSAMI.5B05627/SUPPL_FILE/AM5B05627_SI_001.P
 DF.
- Li, Guozhu, Hong Xue, Changlu Gao, Fengbao Zhang, and Shaoyi Jiang. 2010.
 "Nonfouling Polyampholytes from an Ion-Pair Comonomer with Biomimetic Adhesive Groups." *Macromolecules* 43 (1): 14–16.
 https://doi.org/10.1021/MA902029S/ASSET/IMAGES/LARGE/MA-2009-02029S 0003.JPEG.
- Li, Hongshuai, and Bingyun Li. 2013. "PRP as a New Approach to Prevent Infection: Preparation and in Vitro Antimicrobial Properties of PRP." *Journal of Visualized Experiments : JoVE*, no. 74. https://doi.org/10.3791/50351.
- Li, Jianguo, Jun Jie Koh, Shouping Liu, Rajamani Lakshminarayanan, Chandra S.
 Verma, and Roger W. Beuerman. 2017. "Membrane Active Antimicrobial Peptides: Translating Mechanistic Insights to Design." *Frontiers in Neuroscience* 11 (FEB): 73. https://doi.org/10.3389/FNINS.2017.00073/BIBTEX.
- Liang, Dongsheng, Huanying Li, Xiaohu Xu, Jingheng Liang, Xingzhu Dai, and Wanghong Zhao. 2019. "Rational Design of Peptides with Enhanced Antimicrobial and Anti-Biofilm Activities against Cariogenic Bacterium Streptococcus Mutans." *Chemical Biology & Drug Design* 94 (4). Chem Biol Drug Des: 1768–81. doi:10.1111/CBDD.13579.
- Liaw, Kevin, Ronald H. Delfini, and James J. Abrahams. 2015. "Dental Implant Complications." *Seminars in Ultrasound, CT and MRI* 36 (5): 427–33. https://doi.org/10.1053/J.SULT.2015.09.007.
- Liu, Yi, Lina Wang, Xuedong Zhou, Shen Hu, Siyu Zhang, and Hongkun Wu. 2011.
 "Effect of the Antimicrobial Decapeptide KSL on the Growth of Oral Pathogens and Streptococcus Mutans Biofilm." *International Journal of Antimicrobial Agents* 37 (1). Elsevier: 33–38. doi:10.1016/J.IJANTIMICAG.2010.08.014.
- Liu, Rui, Kaveh Memarzadeh, Bei Chang, Yumei Zhang, Zheng Ma, Robert P. Allaker, Ling Ren, and Ke Yang. 2016. "Antibacterial Effect of Copper-Bearing Titanium

Alloy (Ti-Cu) against Streptococcus Mutans and Porphyromonas Gingivalis." *Scientific Reports 2016 6:1* 6 (1): 1–10. https://doi.org/10.1038/srep29985.

- Liu, Yunxiao, Chia Pin Chang, and Tao Sun. 2014. "Dopamine-Assisted Deposition of Dextran for Nonfouling Applications." *Langmuir* 30 (11): 3118–26. https://doi.org/10.1021/LA500006E/SUPPL_FILE/LA500006E_SI_001.PDF.
- Love, J Christopher, Lara A Estroff, Jennah K Kriebel, Ralph G Nuzzo, and George M Whitesides. 2005. "Self-Assembled Monolayers of Thiolates on Metals as a Form of Nanotechnology." https://doi.org/10.1021/cr0300789.
- Łukaszewska-Kuska, Magdalena, Piotr Krawczyk, Agnieszka Martyla, Wiesław Hędzelek, and Barbara Dorocka-Bobkowska. 2019. "Effects of a Hydroxyapatite Coating on the Stability of Endosseous Implants in Rabbit Tibiae." *Dental and Medical Problems* 56 (2): 123–29. https://doi.org/10.17219/DMP/103851.
- Luo, Huiwen, Yulu Wu, Xiaoou Diao, Wendi Shi, Fan Feng, Fei Qian, Junko Umeda, Katsuyoshi Kondoh, Haitao Xin, and Jianghua Shen. 2020. "Mechanical Properties and Biocompatibility of Titanium with a High Oxygen Concentration for Dental Implants." *Materials Science and Engineering: C* 117 (December): 111306. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.MSEC.2020.111306.
- Luo, Junyuan, Zening Feng, Wentao Jiang, Xuelian Jiang, Yue Chen, Xiaohui Lv, and Linglin Zhang. 2021. "Novel Lactotransferrin-Derived Synthetic Peptides Suppress Cariogenic Bacteria in Vitro and Arrest Dental Caries in Vivo : [Novel Lactotransferrin-Derived Anticaries Peptides]." *Journal of Oral Microbiology* 13 (1). Taylor and Francis Ltd. doi:10.1080/20002297.2021.1943999/SUPPL_FILE/ZJOM_A_1943999_SM4721. ZIP.
- Ma, Ting, Xiyuan Ge, Yu Zhang, Ye Lin, T Ma, Y Zhang, Y Lin, and X Ge. 2017.
 "Effect of Titanium Surface Modifications of Dental Implants on Rapid Osseointegration." *Interface Oral Health Science 2016*, 247–56. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-1560-1_20.
- Malmsten, Martin, Ken Emoto, and James M. Van Alstine. 1998. "Effect of Chain Density on Inhibition of Protein Adsorption by Poly(Ethylene Glycol) Based Coatings." *Journal of Colloid and Interface Science* 202 (2): 507–17. https://doi.org/10.1006/JCIS.1998.5513.

- Mancuso, Giuseppe, Angelina Midiri, Elisabetta Gerace, and Carmelo Biondo. 2021.
 "Bacterial Antibiotic Resistance: The Most Critical Pathogens." *Pathogens* 10 (10): 1310. https://doi.org/10.3390/PATHOGENS10101310/S1.
- Mandracci, Pietro, Federico Mussano, Paola Rivolo, and Stefano Carossa. 2016.
 "Surface Treatments and Functional Coatings for Biocompatibility Improvement and Bacterial Adhesion Reduction in Dental Implantology." *Coatings 2016, Vol. 6, Page 7* 6 (1): 7. https://doi.org/10.3390/COATINGS6010007.
- Manfredini, Nicolò, Ernesto Scibona, Massimo Morbidelli, Davide Moscatelli, and Mattia Sponchioni. 2019. "110th Anniversary: Fast and Easy-to-Use Method for Coating Tissue Culture Polystyrene Surfaces with Nonfouling Copolymers to Prevent Cell Adhesion." *Industrial and Engineering Chemistry Research* 58 (49): 22290–98.

https://doi.org/10.1021/ACS.IECR.9B05104/ASSET/IMAGES/LARGE/IE9B0510 4_0008.JPEG.

- Markwick, Phineus R.L., and J. Andrew McCammon. 2011. "Studying Functional Dynamics in Bio-Molecules Using Accelerated Molecular Dynamics." *Physical Chemistry Chemical Physics* 13 (45): 20053–65. https://doi.org/10.1039/C1CP22100K.
- Matveev, Eugene, Vyacheslav Safronov, and Marat Kazanov. 2021. "Computational Prediction of Susceptibility to Limited Proteolysis for Proteins with Known 3D Structure." *The FASEB Journal* 35 (S1). https://doi.org/10.1096/FASEBJ.2021.35.S1.03523.
- Melicherčík, Pavel, Ondřej Nešuta, and Václav Čeřovský. 2018. "Antimicrobial Peptides for Topical Treatment of Osteomyelitis and Implant-Related Infections:
 - Study in the Spongy Bone." *Pharmaceuticals 2018, Vol. 11, Page 20* 11 (1): 20. https://doi.org/10.3390/PH11010020.
- Mestaghanmi, Houriya, Ali Labriji, Imane M'Touguy, Fatima Zahra Kehailou, Said Idhammou, Nabil Kobb, Fatema Zahra Mahfoud, Ahmadaye Ibrahim Khalil, and Souad el Amrani. 2018. "Impact of Eating Habits and Lifestyle on the Oral Health Status of a Casablanca's Academic Population." *OALib* 05 (11): 1–16. https://doi.org/10.4236/oalib.1104967.

- Michaud, Dominique S., Zhuxuan Fu, Jian Shi, and Mei Chung. 2017. "Periodontal Disease, Tooth Loss, and Cancer Risk." *Epidemiologic Reviews* 39 (1): 49–58. https://doi.org/10.1093/epirev/mxx006.
- Michelle Grandin, H., Simon Berner, and Michel Dard. 2012. "A Review of Titanium Zirconium (TiZr) Alloys for Use in Endosseous Dental Implants." *Materials 2012, Vol. 5, Pages 1348-1360 5* (8): 1348–60. https://doi.org/10.3390/MA5081348.
- Molon, Rafael Scaf De, Juliana Aparecida Najarro Dearo Morais-Camilo, Mario Henrique Arruda Verzola, Rafael Silveira Faeda, Maria Teresa Pepato, and Elcio Marcantonio. 2013. "Impact of Diabetes Mellitus and Metabolic Control on Bone Healing around Osseointegrated Implants: Removal Torque and Histomorphometric Analysis in Rats." *Clinical Oral Implants Research* 24 (7): 831–37. https://doi.org/10.1111/J.1600-0501.2012.02467.X.
- Moojen, Dirk Jan F. 2013. "Exploring New Strategies for Infection Treatment: Commentary on an Article by Cengiz Yilmaz, MD, et al.: 'Bacteriophage Therapy in Implant-Related Infections. An Experimental Study."" *Journal of Bone and Joint Surgery* 95 (2). https://doi.org/10.2106/JBJS.L.01419.
- Moravej, Hoda, Zahra Moravej, Maryam Yazdanparast, Mohammad Heiat, Ali
 Mirhosseini, Mehrdad Moosazadeh Moghaddam, and Reza Mirnejad. 2018.
 "Antimicrobial Peptides: Features, Action, and Their Resistance Mechanisms in
 Bacteria." *Microbial Drug Resistance* 24 (6): 747–67.
 https://doi.org/10.1089/MDR.2017.0392/ASSET/IMAGES/LARGE/FIGURE3.JP
 EG.
- Morrison, Lindsay, and Teresa R. Zembower. 2020. "Antimicrobial Resistance." *Gastrointestinal Endoscopy Clinics of North America* 30 (4): 619–35. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.GIEC.2020.06.004.
- Muhammad Ashraf Nazir. n.d. "Prevalence of Periodontal Disease, Its Association with Systemic Diseases and Prevention." Accessed February 18, 2023. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5426403/.
- Naik, Amit. 2009. "Complete Denture Fractures: A Clinical Study." *Journal of Indian Prosthodontist Society* 9 (3): 148–50. https://doi.org/10.4103/0972-4052.57084.
- Nicholson, John W. 2020. "Titanium Alloys for Dental Implants: A Review." *Prosthesis 2020, Vol. 2, Pages 100-116* 2 (2): 100–116. https://doi.org/10.3390/PROSTHESIS2020011.

- Nkenke, Emeka, Frank Kloss, Jörg Wiltfang, Stefan Schultze-Mosgau, Martin Radespiel-Tröger, Kerstin Loos, and Friedrich Wilhelm Neukam. 2002.
 "Histomorphometric and Fluorescence Microscopic Analysis of Bone Remodelling after Installation of Implants Using an Osteotome Technique." *Clinical Oral Implants Research* 13 (6): 595–602. https://doi.org/10.1034/J.1600-0501.2002.130604.X.
- Norde, W., F. MacRitchie, G. Nowicka, and J. Lyklema. 1986. "Protein Adsorption at Solid-Liquid Interfaces: Reversibility and Conformation Aspects." *Journal of Colloid and Interface Science* 112 (2): 447–56. https://doi.org/10.1016/0021-9797(86)90113-X.
- Norowski, P. Andrew, and Joel D. Bumgardner. 2009. "Biomaterial and Antibiotic Strategies for Peri-Implantitis: A Review." *Journal of Biomedical Materials Research Part B: Applied Biomaterials* 88B (2): 530–43. https://doi.org/10.1002/JBM.B.31152.
- Norton, Michael R., Edward W. Odell, Ian D. Thompson, and Richard J. Cook. 2003.
 "Efficacy of Bovine Bone Mineral for Alveolar Augmentation: A Human Histologic Study." *Clinical Oral Implants Research* 14 (6): 775–83. https://doi.org/10.1046/J.0905-7161.2003.00952.X.
- Oeller, Marc, Ryan Kang, Rosie Bell, Hannes Ausserwöger, Pietro Sormanni, and Michele Vendruscolo. 2023. "Sequence-Based Prediction of PH-Dependent Protein Solubility Using CamSol." *Briefings in Bioinformatics* 24 (2): 1–7. https://doi.org/10.1093/BIB/BBAD004.
- Oh, Se-Lim, Harlan J Shiau, and Mark A Reynolds. 2020. "Survival of Dental Implants at Sites after Implant Failure: A Systematic Review." *The Journal of Prosthetic Dentistry* 123 (1): 54–60.
- Okereke, Chioma J, Chibueze Paul Onyenegecha, and Ifeanyi Jude Njoku. 2021. "Corrosion Susceptibility of Stainless Steel in Articial Saliva Containing Citric Acid." https://doi.org/10.21203/rs.3.rs-381121/v1.
- Oliveira, Fernando G., Ana R. Ribeiro, Geronimo Perez, Bráulio S. Archanjo, Cristol P. Gouvea, Joyce R. Araújo, Andrea P.C. Campos, et al. 2015. "Understanding Growth Mechanisms and Tribocorrosion Behaviour of Porous TiO2 Anodic Films Containing Calcium, Phosphorous and Magnesium." *Applied Surface Science* 341 (June): 1–12. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.APSUSC.2015.02.163.

- Olmedo-Gaya, Maris Victoria, Francisco J. Manzano-Moreno, Esther Cañaveral-Cavero, Juan De Dios Luna-Del Castillo, and Manuel Vallecillo-Capilla. 2016.
 "Risk Factors Associated with Early Implant Failure: A 5-Year Retrospective Clinical Study." *The Journal of Prosthetic Dentistry* 115 (2): 150–55. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.PROSDENT.2015.07.020.
- Osman, Reham B., and Michael V. Swain. 2015. "A Critical Review of Dental Implant Materials with an Emphasis on Titanium versus Zirconia." *Materials 2015, Vol. 8, Pages 932-958* 8 (3): 932–58. https://doi.org/10.3390/MA8030932.
- Ozyildirim, Serhan. 2014. "Topical Antibiotics May Be Useful for the Prevention of Surgical Site Infection under Some Circumstances." *Pacing and Clinical Electrophysiology* 37 (7): 923–923. https://doi.org/10.1111/PACE.12437.
- Parithimarkalaignan, S., and T. V. Padmanabhan. 2013. "Osseointegration: An Update." Journal of Indian Prosthodontist Society 13 (1): 2–6. https://doi.org/10.1007/S13191-013-0252-Z/METRICS.
- Patil, Rahul. 2015. "Zirconia versus Titanium Dental Implants: A Systematic Review." Journal of Dental Implants 5 (1): 39. https://doi.org/10.4103/0974-6781.154430.
- Perez, Federico, Andrea M. Hujer, Kristine M. Hujer, Brooke K. Decker, Philip N.
 Rather, and Robert A. Bonomo. 2007. "Global Challenge of Multidrug-Resistant Acinetobacter Baumanni." *Antimicrobial Agents and Chemotherapy* 51 (10): 3471–84. https://doi.org/10.1128/AAC.01464-06/ASSET/65B369AD-9DDF-46D3-BA85-DC3346C213E5/ASSETS/GRAPHIC/ZAC0100768090001.JPEG.
- Pimentel, Suzana P., Roberto Shiota, Fabiano R. Cirano, Renato C.V. Casarin, Vanessa G.A. Pecorari, Marcio Z. Casati, Alex N. Haas, and Fernanda V. Ribeiro. 2018.
 "Occurrence of Peri-Implant Diseases and Risk Indicators at the Patient and Implant Levels: A Multilevel Cross-Sectional Study." *Journal of Periodontology* 89 (9): 1091–1100. https://doi.org/10.1002/JPER.17-0599.
- Quiney, R E, E Brimblet, and M Hodge. 1990. "Maxillary Sinusitis from Dental Osseointegrated Implants." *The Journal of Laryngology and Otology*. Vol. 104.
- Resnik, Randolph R., and Carl Misch. 2008. "Prophylactic Antibiotic Regimens in Oral Implantology: Rationale and Protocol." *Implant Dentistry* 17 (2): 142–50. https://doi.org/10.1097/ID.0B013E3181752B09.
- Reyes, Catherine D., Timothy A. Petrie, Kellie L. Burns, Zvi Schwartz, and Andrés J. García. 2007. "Biomolecular Surface Coating to Enhance Orthopaedic Tissue

Healing and Integration." *Biomaterials* 28 (21): 3228–35. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.BIOMATERIALS.2007.04.003.

- Rodriguez, Angel E, Mona Monzavi, | Chester, L Yokoyama, and Hessam Nowzari. 2018. "Zirconia Dental Implants: A Clinical and Radiographic Evaluation." https://doi.org/10.1111/jerd.12414.
- Romo, Alicia López, and Rodolfo Quirós. 2019. "Appropriate Use of Antibiotics: An Unmet Need." *Therapeutic Advances in Urology* 11 (May): 9–17. https://doi.org/10.1177/1756287219832174/ASSET/IMAGES/LARGE/10.1177_1 756287219832174-FIG3.JPEG.
- Rousseau, Nikki, Jimmy Steele, Carl May, and Catherine Exley. 2014. "Your Whole Life Is Lived through Your Teeth: Biographical Disruption and Experiences of Tooth Loss and Replacement." *Sociology of Health and Illness* 36 (3): 462–76. https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-9566.12080.
- Rues, Stefan, Marc Schmitter, Stefanie Kappel, Robert Sonntag, Jan Philippe Kretzer, and Jan Nadorf. 2021. "Effect of Bone Quality and Quantity on the Primary Stability of Dental Implants in a Simulated Bicortical Placement." *Clinical Oral Investigations* 25 (3): 1265–72. https://doi.org/10.1007/S00784-020-03432-Z/TABLES/2.
- Rusmini, Federica, Zhiyuan Zhong, and Jan Feijen. 2007. "Protein Immobilization Strategies for Protein Biochips." *Biomacromolecules* 8 (6): 1775–89. https://doi.org/10.1021/BM061197B/ASSET/IMAGES/LARGE/BM061197BH00 020.JPEG.
- Saintrain, Maria Vieira De Lima, and Eliane Helena Alvim de Souza. 2012. "Impact of Tooth Loss on the Quality of Life." *Gerodontology* 29 (2). https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1741-2358.2011.00535.x.
- Sakiyama-Elbert, S. E., and J. A. Hubbell. 2003. "Functional Biomaterials: Design of Novel Biomaterials." *Https://Doi.Org/10.1146/Annurev.Matsci.31.1.183* 31 (November): 183–201. https://doi.org/10.1146/ANNUREV.MATSCI.31.1.183.
- Sakka, Salah, Kusai Baroudi, and Mohammad Zakaria Nassani. 2012. "Factors Associated with Early and Late Failure of Dental Implants." *Journal of Investigative and Clinical Dentistry*. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.2041-1626.2012.00162.x.

- Salvi, Giovanni E., Dieter D. Bosshardt, Niklaus P. Lang, Ingemar Abrahamsson, Tord Berglundh, Jan Lindhe, Saso Ivanovski, and Nikos Donos. 2015. "Temporal Sequence of Hard and Soft Tissue Healing around Titanium Dental Implants." *Periodontology 2000* 68 (1): 135–52. https://doi.org/10.1111/PRD.12054.
- Sánchez-Pérez, Arturo, M^a José Moya-Villaescusa, Alfonso Jornet-García, and Santiago Gomez. 2010. "Etiology, Risk Factors and Management of Implant Fractures" 15
 (3): 504–12. https://doi.org/10.4317/medoral.15.e504.
- Sancho-Puchades, Manuel, Christoph H.F. Hämmerle, and Goran I. Benic. 2015. "In Vitro Assessment of Artifacts Induced by Titanium, Titanium–Zirconium and Zirconium Dioxide Implants in Cone-Beam Computed Tomography." *Clinical Oral Implants Research* 26 (10): 1222–28. https://doi.org/10.1111/CLR.12438.
- Sayed, Mohammed E., Maryam H. Mugri, Mazen A. Almasri, Manea Musa Al-Ahmari, Shilpa Bhandi, Thodur Balaji Madapusi, Saranya Varadarajan, et al. 2021. "Role of Stem Cells in Augmenting Dental Implant Osseointegration: A Systematic Review." *Coatings 2021, Vol. 11, Page 1035* 11 (9): 1035. https://doi.org/10.3390/COATINGS11091035.
- Scarano, Antonio, Maurizio Piattelli, Giuseppe Vrespa, Giovanna Petrone, Giovanna Iezzi, and Adriano Piattelli. 2003. "Bone Healing around Titanium and Titanium Nitride-Coated Dental Implants with Three Surfaces: An Experimental Study in Rats." *Clinical Implant Dentistry and Related Research* 5 (2): 103–11. https://doi.org/10.1111/J.1708-8208.2003.TB00191.X.
- Schmüser, Lars, Noemi Encinas, MAXIME Paven, Daniel J. Graham, David G.
 Castner, Doris Vollmer, Hans Jürgen Butt, and Tobias Weidner. 2016. "Candle
 Soot-Based Super-Amphiphobic Coatings Resist Protein Adsorption." *Biointerphases* 11 (3): 031007. https://doi.org/10.1116/1.4959237/124341.
- Scouten, William H., John H.T. Luong, and R. Stephen Brown. 1995. "Enzyme or Protein Immobilization Techniques for Applications in Biosensor Design." *Trends in Biotechnology* 13 (5): 178–85. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0167-7799(00)88935-0.
- Sculean, Anton, Reinhard Gruber, and Dieter D. Bosshardt. 2014. "Soft Tissue Wound Healing around Teeth and Dental Implants." *Journal of Clinical Periodontology*. https://doi.org/10.1111/jcpe.12206.
- Şençimen, Metin, Aydin Gülses, Jülide Özen, Cem Dergin, Kemal Murat Okçu, Simel Ayyıldız, and Hasan Ayberk Altuğ. 2011. "Early Detection of Alterations in the

Resonance Frequency Assessment of Oral Implant Stability on Various Bone Types: A Clinical Study." *Journal of Oral Implantology* 37 (4): 411–19. https://doi.org/10.1563/AAID-JOI-D-09-00130.

- Shang, Dejing, Hao Liang, Shi Wei, Xin Yan, Qingzu Yang, and Yue Sun. 2014.
 "Effects of Antimicrobial Peptide L-K6, a Temporin-1CEb Analog on Oral Pathogen Growth, Streptococcus Mutans Biofilm Formation, and Anti-Inflammatory Activity." *Applied Microbiology and Biotechnology* 98 (20).
 Springer Verlag: 8685–95. doi:10.1007/S00253-014-5927-9/FIGURES/6.
- Shapiro, I. M., N. J. Hickok, J. Parvizi, S. Stewart, and T. P. Schaer. 2012. "MOLECULAR ENGINEERING OF AN ORTHOPAEDIC IMPLANT: FROM BENCH TO BEDSIDE." *European Cells & Materials* 23 (May): 362. https://doi.org/10.22203/ECM.V023A28.
- Shibli, Jamil Awad, Sauro Grassi, Luciene Cristina De Figueiredo, Magda Feres,
 Giovanna Iezzi, and Adriano Piattelli. 2007. "Human Peri-Implant Bone Response
 to Turned and Oxidized Titanium Implants Inserted and Retrieved after 2 Months." *Implant Dentistry* 16 (3): 252–59.

https://doi.org/10.1097/ID.0B013E3180DE4D64.

- Shirzaei Sani, Ehsan, Roberto Portillo Lara, Zahra Aldawood, Seyed Hossein Bassir,
 Daniel Nguyen, Alpdogan Kantarci, Giuseppe Intini, and Nasim Annabi. 2019.
 "An Antimicrobial Dental Light Curable Bioadhesive Hydrogel for Treatment of Peri-Implant Diseases." *Matter* 1 (4): 926–44.
 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.matt.2019.07.019.
- Sidambe, Alfred T. 2014. "Biocompatibility of Advanced Manufactured Titanium Implants—A Review." *Materials 2014, Vol. 7, Pages 8168-8188* 7 (12): 8168–88. https://doi.org/10.3390/MA7128168.
- Silva, Bruno Rocha Da, Victor Aragão Abreu De Freitas, Victor Alves Carneiro,
 Francisco Vassiliepe Sousa Arruda, Esteban Nicolás Lorenzón, Andréa Silvia
 Walter De Aguiar, Eduardo Maffud Cilli, Benildo Sousa Cavada, and Edson
 Holanda Teixeira. 2013. "Antimicrobial Activity of the Synthetic Peptide Lys-A1
 against Oral Streptococci." *Peptides* 42 (April). Elsevier: 78–83.
 doi:10.1016/J.PEPTIDES.2012.12.001.
- Simmons, Craig A., Nancy Valiquette, and Robert M. Pilliar. 1999. "Osseointegration of Sintered Porous-Surfaced and Plasma Spray-Coated Implants: An Animal

Model Study of Early Postimplantation Healing Response and Mechanical Stability." *Journal of Biomedical Materials Research* 47 (2): 127–38. https://doi.org/10.1002/(SICI)1097-4636(199911)47:2<127::AID-JBM3>3.0.CO;2-C.

- Simona Baltatu, Madalina, Catalin Andrei Tugui, Manuela Cristina Perju, Marcelin Benchea, Mihaela Claudia Spataru, Andrei Victor Sandu, and Petrica Vizureanu. n.d. "Biocompatible Titanium Alloys Used in Medical Applications." Accessed April 10, 2023. http://www.revistadechimie.ro.
- Sipahi, Oguz Resat. 2014. "Economics of Antibiotic Resistance." *Http://Dx.Doi.Org/10.1586/14787210.6.4.523* 6 (4): 523–39. https://doi.org/10.1586/14787210.6.4.523.
- Sivaraman, Karthik, Aditi Chopra, Aparna I. Narayan, and Dhanasekar Balakrishnan. 2018. "Is Zirconia a Viable Alternative to Titanium for Oral Implant? A Critical Review." *Journal of Prosthodontic Research* 62 (2): 121–33. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.JPOR.2017.07.003.
- Sivolella, Stefano, Edoardo Stellini, Giulia Brunello, Chiara Gardin, Letizia Ferroni, Eriberto Bressan, and Barbara Zavan. 2012. "Silver Nanoparticles in Alveolar Bone Surgery Devices." *Journal of Nanomaterials* 2012. https://doi.org/10.1155/2012/975842.
- Sjöström, Terje, Angela H. Nobbs, and Bo Su. 2016. "Bactericidal Nanospike Surfaces via Thermal Oxidation of Ti Alloy Substrates." *Materials Letters* 167 (March): 22– 26. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.MATLET.2015.12.140.
- Song, Je-seon, Kyung Joo Cho, Joungmok Kim, and Jeong Hee Kim. 2014.
 "Identification of Antimicrobial Peptide Hexamers against Oral Pathogens through Rapid Screening of a Synthetic Combinatorial Peptide Library." *International Journal of Oral Biology* 39 (4): 169–76.

https://doi.org/10.11620/IJOB.2014.39.4.169.

- Stupp, Samuel I. 2010. "Self-Assembly and Biomaterials." Nano Letters 10 (12): 4783– 86. https://doi.org/10.1021/NL103567Y/ASSET/IMAGES/LARGE/NL-2010-03567Y_0004.JPEG.
- Sukegawa, Shintaro, Masato Saika, Ryo Tamamura, Keisuke Nakano, Kiyofumi Takabatake, Hotaka Kawai, Hitoshi Nagatsuka, and Yoshihiko Furuki. 2020. "Clinical Retrospective Study of Dental Implant Removal: Do Patients Who

Require Implant Removal Desire Implant Prosthesis Again?" *Medicina Oral, Patología Oral y Cirugía Bucal* 25 (6): e784. https://doi.org/10.4317/MEDORAL.23789.

- Sun, Zhaoxi, Yu N. Yan, Maoyou Yang, and John Z.H. Zhang. 2017. "Interaction Entropy for Protein-Protein Binding." *Journal of Chemical Physics* 146 (12): 124124. https://doi.org/10.1063/1.4978893/636423.
- Sundaram Muthuraman, Meenakshi. 2015. "Systematic Review on Sterilization Methods of Implants and Medical Devices Synthesis, Characterization of (1H-Indol-3-Yl)Alkyl-3-(1H-Indol-3-Yl)Propanamide Derivatives View Project." *Article in International Journal of ChemTech Research*. https://www.researchgate.net/publication/278242593.
- Tallarico, Marco, Fulvio Gatti, Silvio Mario Meloni, Leonardo Muzzi, Nicola Baldini, Jacopo Buti, Armando Minciarelli, Erta Xhanari, and Marco Esposito. 2020. "TO SPLINT OR NOT TO SPLINT SHORT DENTAL IMPLANTS UNDER THE SAME PARTIAL FIXED PROSTHESIS? ONE-YEAR POST-LOADING DATA FROM A MULTICENTRE RANDOMISED CONTROLLED TRIAL." *Clinical Trials in Dentistry* 2 (1): 47–58. https://doi.org/10.36130/CTD.02.2020.04.
- Tang, Liping, Paul Thevenot, and Wenjing Hu. 2008. "Surface Chemistry Influences Implant Biocompatibility." *Current Topics in Medicinal Chemistry* 8 (4): 270–80. https://doi.org/10.2174/156802608783790901.
- Thakur, Anita, Payal Guleria, and Nimisha Bansal. 2016. "Symptom & Risk Factor Based Diagnosis of Gum Diseases Using Neural Network." In *Proceedings of the* 2016 6th International Conference - Cloud System and Big Data Engineering, Confluence 2016, 101–4. Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers Inc. https://doi.org/10.1109/CONFLUENCE.2016.7508095.
- Tripathi, Vijay, and Eddie Cytryn. 2017. "Impact of Anthropogenic Activities on the Dissemination of Antibiotic Resistance across Ecological Boundaries." *Essays in Biochemistry* 61 (1): 11–21. https://doi.org/10.1042/EBC20160054.
- Tsai, Ching Wei, Ning Yi Hsu, Chang Hsu Wang, Chia Yu Lu, Yung Chang, Hui Hsu Gavin Tsai, and Rouh Chyu Ruaan. 2009. "Coupling Molecular Dynamics Simulations with Experiments for the Rational Design of Indolicidin-Analogous Antimicrobial Peptides." *Journal of Molecular Biology* 392 (3): 837–54. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.JMB.2009.06.071.

- Turkyilmaz, Ilser, and Edwin A. McGlumphy. 2008. "Influence of Bone Density on Implant Stability Parameters and Implant Success: A Retrospective Clinical Study." *BMC Oral Health* 8 (1): 1–8. https://doi.org/10.1186/1472-6831-8-32/FIGURES/4.
- Tymofieiev, Oleksii, Viktoriia Ripa, Diana Havlytiuk, Marta Sokoliuk, and Lesia Kolisnichenko. 2022. "Prevention of Post-Implantation Inflammatory Complications." *Journal of Diagnostics and Treatment of Oral and Maxillofacial Pathology* 6 (6): 77–81. https://doi.org/10.23999/J.DTOMP.2022.6.1.
- Uppal, N. 2015. "Implant Checklist." *British Dental Journal 2015 218:10* 218 (10): 556–556. https://doi.org/10.1038/sj.bdj.2015.394.
- Vargas, Segura A I, A Ilyina, Ceniceros E P Segura, Belmares Y Silva, and Gonz aacute lez L M eacute ndez. 2015. "Etiology and Microbiology of Periodontal Diseases: A Review." *African Journal of Microbiology Research* 9 (48): 2300–2306. https://doi.org/10.5897/AJMR2015.7609.
- Veerachamy, Suganthan, Tejasri Yarlagadda, Geetha Manivasagam, and Prasad Kdv Yarlagadda. 2014. "Bacterial Adherence and Biofilm Formation on Medical Implants: A Review." *Http://Dx.Doi.Org/10.1177/0954411914556137* 228 (10): 1083–99. https://doi.org/10.1177/0954411914556137.
- Vermeltfoort, Pit B.J., Johanna M.M. Hooymans, Henk J. Busscher, and Henny C. Van Der Mei. 2008. "Bacterial Transmission from Lens Storage Cases to Contact Lenses—Effects of Lens Care Solutions and Silver Impregnation of Cases." *Journal of Biomedical Materials Research Part B: Applied Biomaterials* 87B (1): 237–43. https://doi.org/10.1002/JBM.B.31102.
- Wandiyanto, Jason V., Vi Khanh Truong, Mohammad Al Kobaisi, Saulius Juodkazis, Helmut Thissen, Olha Bazaka, Kateryna Bazaka, Russell J. Crawford, and Elena P. Ivanova. 2019. "The Fate of Osteoblast-Like MG-63 Cells on Pre-Infected Bactericidal Nanostructured Titanium Surfaces." *Materials 2019, Vol. 12, Page 1575* 12 (10): 1575. https://doi.org/10.3390/MA12101575.
- Wang, Yufei, Yingying Fan, Zhengli Zhou, Huanxin Tu, Qian Ren, Xiuqing Wang, Longjiang Ding, Xuedong Zhou, and Linglin Zhang. 2017. "De Novo Synthetic Short Antimicrobial Peptides against Cariogenic Bacteria." *Archives of Oral Biology* 80 (August). Pergamon: 41–50. doi:10.1016/J.ARCHORALBIO.2017.03.017.

- Welsh, W. R., H. D. Kim, Y. S. Jong, and R. F. Valentini. 1995. "Controlled Release of Platelet-Derived Growth Factor Using Ethylene Vinyl Acetate Copolymer (EVAc) Coated on Stainless-Steel Wires." *Biomaterials* 16 (17): 1319–25. https://doi.org/10.1016/0142-9612(95)91047-3.
- Wisdom, Cate, Sarah Kay VanOosten, Kyle W. Boone, Dmytro Khvostenko, Paul M. Arnold, Malcolm L. Snead, and Candan Tamerler. 2016. "Controlling the Biomimetic Implant Interface: Modulating Antimicrobial Activity by Spacer Design." *Https://Doi.Org/10.1142/S2251237316400050* 04 (01): 1640005. https://doi.org/10.1142/S2251237316400050.
- Wong, M., J. Eulenberger, R. Schenk, and E. Hunziker. 1995. "Effect of Surface Topology on the Osseointegration of Implant Materials in Trabecular Bone." *Journal of Biomedical Materials Research* 29 (12): 1567–75. https://doi.org/10.1002/JBM.820291213.
- Yazici, H., H. Fong, B. Wilson, E. E. Oren, F. A. Amos, H. Zhang, J. S. Evans, M. L. Snead, M. Sarikaya, and C. Tamerler. 2013. "Biological Response on a Titanium Implant-Grade Surface Functionalized with Modular Peptides." *Acta Biomaterialia* 9 (2): 5341–52. https://doi.org/10.1016/J.ACTBIO.2012.11.004.
- Yazici, Hilal, Mary B. O'Neill, Turgay Kacar, Brandon R. Wilson, E. Emre Oren, Mehmet Sarikaya, and Candan Tamerler. 2016. "Engineered Chimeric Peptides as Antimicrobial Surface Coating Agents toward Infection-Free Implants." ACS Applied Materials and Interfaces 8 (8): 5070–81.

https://doi.org/10.1021/ACSAMI.5B03697/SUPPL_FILE/AM5B03697_SI_001.P DF.

- Yoshitani, Junya, Tamon Kabata, Hiroshi Arakawa, Yukio Kato, Takayuki Nojima, Katsuhiro Hayashi, Masaharu Tokoro, et al. 2020. "Combinational Therapy with Antibiotics and Antibiotic-Loaded Adipose-Derived Stem Cells Reduce Abscess Formation in Implant-Related Infection in Rats." *Scientific Reports 2020 10:1* 10 (1): 1–13. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-020-68184-y.
- Yucesoy, Deniz T., Marketa Hnilova, Kyle Boone, Paul M. Arnold, Malcolm L. Snead, and Candan Tamerler. 2015. "Chimeric Peptides as Implant Functionalization Agents for Titanium Alloy Implants with Antimicrobial Properties." JOM 67 (4): 754–66. https://doi.org/10.1007/S11837-015-1350-7/FIGURES/7.

- Yucesoy, Deniz T, | Dimitry Khatayevich, Candan Tamerler, Mehmet Sarikaya, and Dimitry Khatayevich. 2020. "Rationally Designed Chimeric Solid-Binding Peptides for Tailoring Solid Interfaces." *Medical Devices & Sensors* 3 (3): e10065. https://doi.org/10.1002/MDS3.10065.
- Zhang, Miqin, Tejal Desai, and Mauro Ferrari. 1998. "Proteins and Cells on PEG Immobilized Silicon Surfaces." *Biomaterials* 19 (10): 953–60. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0142-9612(98)00026-X.
- Zhang, Qi Yu, Zhi Bin Yan, Yue Ming Meng, Xiang Yu Hong, Gang Shao, Jun Jie Ma, Xu Rui Cheng, Jun Liu, Jian Kang, and Cai Yun Fu. 2021. "Antimicrobial Peptides: Mechanism of Action, Activity and Clinical Potential." *Military Medical Research 2021 8:1* 8 (1): 1–25. https://doi.org/10.1186/S40779-021-00343-2.
- Zhou, Yi, Jinxia Gao, Le Luo, and Yining Wang. 2016. "Does Bruxism Contribute to Dental Implant Failure? A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis." *Clinical Implant Dentistry and Related Research* 18 (2): 410–20. https://doi.org/10.1111/CID.12300.